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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Willie International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | present to the shareholders the results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 3| December 2011 (the
“Year").

FINAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group reported a negative turnover of approximately HK$3|
million compared to a positive turnover of approximately HK$56 million last year.
The drop in turnover was mainly attributed to the increase in net loss from the sale
of investments at fair value through profit or loss by approximately HK$56 million

and the decrease in rental income by approximately HK$3 1 million.

The Group reported a consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$552 million for the Year as compared to a consolidated loss of
approximately HK$ 169 million last year. The consolidated loss was mainly attributed
by net loss from sale of investments and net fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$508
million (2010: a sum of net loss of approximately HK$105 million) and allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$23 million (2010: reversal of allowance of
approximately HK$ 16 million). Loss per share for the Year was HK$1.63 (2010
(restated): HK$2.54).

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS

Business Review & Prospect

2011 was a year of significant volatility with large degree of uncertainties in the
external environment including the feeble economic situation in Europe and the US
as the lingering European sovereign debt crisis spreading from Greece to Italy and
Spain, the unprecedented downgrade of US's sovereign rating by Standard & Poor's
for the very first time, and the raising concern about the possible double-dip
recession in the global economy by European countries. The Hong Kong Hang Seng
Index suffered a loss of 4,601 points to end at 18,434, its worst performance since
2008. The securities trading segment reported a loss of approximately HK$496
million for the Year resulting mainly from the net fair value loss on financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss.
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During the Year, the Group acquired certain units of China United Centre in North
Point for generating rental income after the deemed disposal of certain subsidiaries
serving as the Group's property investment arm in December 2010. As the
transaction was completed in January 2012 (subsequent to the balance sheet date),
no rental income was recorded for the property investment segment during the

Year.

The money lending segment reported a loss of approximately HK$1 | million which
was mainly due to the allowance made for doubtful loans receivable of
approximately HK$20 million. The Group has subsequently initiated legal actions

against one of these doubtful borrowers in late February 2012.

During the Year, the Group acquired a 60% equity interest in China Energy
Worldwide Investment Limited ("China Energy"”), which through its two entities in
the PRC, intends to engage in the manufacturing of LNG-driven heavy-duty trucks
and specialised vehicles and in the investment of the construction and operation of
LNG refueling stations. In July 2011, the Group injected the paid-up capital of about
RMB8.4 million (equivalent to HK$10.I million) for the first phrase of capital
injection in the entity intended for the manufacturing of LNG-driven heavy-duty
trucks and specialised vehicles named BR)SERFRERER AEBR QA .
However, there are certain delays in the construction of the factory. The Group has
not injected the second payment and is currently re-evaluating the project and
negotiating with other partners. In view of this, a provision for impairment loss of

HK$ 1.8 million has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

Last year, | talked about employing a more aggressive approach to investing. Perhaps
it was somewhat premature as the global economy turned out to be rather fragile
as reflected in the major stock indexes around the world. However, we still feel that
the recovery is on the way as we saw the Hang Seng index rebounded some 3,000
points since the beginning of the year. We will continue to evaluate projects and
investment proposals to capture investment opportunities and enhance the

shareholders’ return.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$33 million (2010: nil) with fixed interest rates of about % per
annum is repayable within one year with a repayment on demand clause and

denominated in US dollars.

As most of the Group’s transactions and bank balances were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and US dollars, the Group's exposure to foreign exchange rate was

minimal. The Group did not have any financial instruments used for hedging purpose.

As at 3| December 2011, the Group's total equity amounted to approximately
HK$ 1,790 million (2010: approximately HK$ 1,989 million) and had net current assets
of approximately HK$!,106 million including cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$336 million (2010: approximately HK$ 1,370 million including cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$317 million). The Group had nil gearing
ratio (2010: nil) as computed on the basis of net borrowings to total equity and with

current ratio of 31 times (2010: 393 times).

Capital Resources and Reorganisation

In June 2011, the Company completed the placing of about 59.21 million new shares
at the placing price of HK$0.20 each to raise net proceeds of approximately
HK$11.73 million for general working capital. Also in June 2011, the Company
completed a rights issue of about 2,368.56 million rights shares on the basis of eight
rights shares for every share held at HK$0.125 per rights share to raise net
proceeds of approximately HK$286.50 million for general working capital and
potential investments of the Group. The majority of the funds raised by the rights
issue have been applied as initially intended and there is currently a balance of
approximately HK$ 136 million (excluding fund of about HK$42 million reserved for
the subscription of Freeman'’s rights shares) left unused and kept at the bank. As the
Company has not identified appropriate investment opportunities, the Company re-

designates the intended use of this bank balance from "potential investments” to
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"general working capital” purpose. In December 201 I, the Company granted about
54.48 million share options at an exercise price of HK$0.187 per share. All options
were exercised in the same month and thereby raising an additional capital of
approximately HK$10.19 million. Also in December 201 |, the Company completed
placing about 128.21 million new shares to Freeman Financial Corporation Limited
("Freeman”, a company listed on the Stock Exchange) to raise net proceeds of about
HK$48.08 million, which were used by the Company to subscribe for 188,548,057
new adjusted shares issued by Freeman at the same amount of consideration in
March 2012 in order to develop strategic alliance and business co-operation with

Freeman.

In March 2011, a capital reorganisation involving capital reduction and share
consolidation of five reduced shares into one adjusted share resulting in the
authorised share capital of the Company being reduced from HK$1,000,000,000 to
HK$20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 adjusted shares of HK$0.0| each and the
issued share capital of the Company was thereby reduced from HK$148,034,983 to
HK$2,960,699.66 divided into 296,069,966 adjusted shares thus giving rise to a total
of credit of HK$145,074,283.34 (before expenses) which was credited to the share
premium account of the Company. In May 2011, an ordinary resolution approving
the increase in authorised share capital from HK$20,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares to HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
ordinary shares by the creation of an additional 8,000,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each was passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company.
In December 201, there was another capital reduction and share consolidation of
five reduced shares into one adjusted share resulting in the authorised share capital
of the Company being reduced from HK$100,000,000 to HK$20,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 adjusted shares of HK$0.01 each and the issued share capital of
the Company was thereby reduced from HK$27,238,436.85 to HK$5,447,687.37
divided into 544,768,737 adjusted shares thus giving rise to a total of credit of
HK$21,790,749.48 (before expenses) which was credited to the share premium
account of the Company. Both capital reorganisations were approved by special
resolutions passed at each respective extraordinary general meetings of the

Company.
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At the above mentioned extraordinary general meeting held in December 201 1, the
Company also proposed a further capital reduction to reduce the amount standing
in the credit of the Company's share premium account to the extent of
approximately HK$ 1,322 million by applying the credit arising from such reduction
to set off against the equal amount of the entire audited balance in the accumulated
losses of the Company as at 31 December 2010. In doing so, this will enable the
Company to pave way for future payment of dividends, as and when the Directors
consider it appropriate. This special resolution was duly passed by the shareholders
of the Company and is conditional upon the approval by the High Court of Hong
Kong (the "High Court”) and fulfillment of certain registration requirements. The
application to the High Court for this further capital reduction is being finalised by
the Company in consultation with its lawyers and is scheduled to be submitted to

the High Court in the 2nd quarter of 2012.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION

Apart from the investment in LNG project mentioned above, the Company made
an announcement in June 201 | for the acquisition of 250 million new shares of a
Chapter 21 investment company listed in Hong Kong for long term investment at a

cash consideration of HK$75 million. The transaction was completed in August 201 I.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$7 11 million (2010
approximately HK$678 million) were pledged to certain financial institutions and
brokers to secure certain margin financing and loan facilities amounting to

approximately HK$356 million (2010: approximately HK$317 million) granted to the
Group of which approximately HK$33 million (2010: nil) was utilised.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had capital expenditure commitments
contracted but not provided (net of deposit paid) of approximately HK$ 112 million
(2010: approximately HK$O. 1 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group and the Company had provided corporate
guarantees facilities to its associates for securing banking facilities amounting to
approximately HK$342 million (2010: approximately HK$360 million), which were
utilised to the extent of approximately HK$278 million (2010: approximately
HK$316 million).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed 24 employees (2010: 32 employees)
excluding directors. The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, working experience and prevailing market standards. Employee
benefits include medical insurance coverage, mandatory provident fund and share

option scheme.

APPRECIATION

Mr. Phillip King who joined the Company in April 2005 resigned from his position as
the managing director in September 2011 to pursue his other business
commitments. Mr. King and | had worked together for more than six years and he
had provided the Company with much guidance and direction. Meanwhile, Mr. Wang
Lin resigned as an executive director in June 2011 and Mr Liu Jian resigned as an
independent non-executive director in August 2011 also to pursue their own
business commitments. [t has been my pleasure working with them and we wish

them all the best in their endeavors.

I would like to take this opportunity to welcome Mr. Derek Fung, Mr. Alfred Tsui, Mr.
Frank H. Miu and Mr. Gary Drew Douglas to the Board from June 201 1.

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders for your

continuing support and our employees for your dedications and hard work.

By order of the Board

Willie International Holdings Limited

Dr. Chuang Yueheng, Henry

Chairman

29 March 2012
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chuang Yueheng, Henry, aged 56, has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Company since 2002. He holds Master's degrees in Petroleum Engineering and in
Business Administration from the University of Southern California in the United
States of America. In 2007, Dubna University of Russia awarded Dr. Chuang an
Honorary Doctorate degree in Petroleum Engineering in recognition of his
achievements in the field of petroleum engineering. He has over 19 years of
experience in corporate finance and development. He is also the Deputy Chairman
and a Non-executive Director of Mascotte Holdings Limited, a company listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Wong Ying Seung, Asiong, aged 61, has been appointed as a Director of the
Company since 2002 and as the Vice Chairman of the Company since January 201 I.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering from the University of
London in the United Kingdom. He has over 30 years of experience in banking and

investment.

Mr. Tsui Hung Wai, Alfred, aged 43, has been appointed as a Director of the
Company since June 201 | and as the Managing Director of the Company from |5
March 2012. He graduated from the Ontario College of Art and Design with a
Bachelor’s degree in Interior Design. He has over |3 years of experience in the Sales
& Marketing industry both in Hong Kong and Mainland China and previously held

senior positions with manufacturing operations.

Mr. Fung Yue Tak, Derek, aged 42, has been appointed as a Director of the Company
since June 201 1. He is a grandson of Sir Kenneth Fung Ping-Fan. Mr. Fung graduated
from Pepperdine University with a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration, and
has been active in managing finances and investments of family-owned enterprises.
He has also been a member of the Hong Kong Professional Golfers Association
since 1994,

201 45 BFIERERERAR
Biographies of Directors
EE/EE

BTES

HREEL REoen B _TT_FEEZ
ERRRRLRE - BREBEXEHMMAEAH
TERERTSNRTIHEERLIEM - R-F
TLF  GRENHHAREREELRE A
TREXBELEM  RHBENAATRES
ZHH e BREXHBRERIETEER T
NEER - WAREHEREARAR (RE
EMaRSMAERAR (MR LH2A
A)REIEFERFATES

TARKLE BE61HR B _TT_FEEZ
ERARRIEE - AT ——F - FREZR(E
RARAELE - BEERERIANBLET
BELEU  RRETRRETEIERA=1
FiRE -

HREBERELE BF4BK BT —FRAKE
BZERALFTEE YE-_T-—F=At
TREHERALRERHLE - REXNT
REEEMT R Bl - BENRFABLEMN -
REFBT=FEEERTEAMBEERTS
EEER ETLEXBZES AR -

BREBARE BF25 BT —F AR
BZARARAIES  BABRABLT 2H
5 BREZENMIBNKEKXZ (Pepperdine
University) - BTEER 2+ 2 - IFER
ERERLENTBRIRE - BRE-NAARF
BNAREBESBALXNHGEEE -

11



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2011 Annual Report
Biographies of Directors
EEHE

12

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wing Ping, aged 45, has been appointed as a Director of the Company
since 2009. He has over 20 years of experience in auditing and accounting fields. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy with honours from City University of
Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is presently an Executive Director of Radford Capital

Investment Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wen Louis, aged 77, has been appointed as a Director of the Company since
2009. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Engineering from the City University of New
York. He has an extensive experience in engineering, marketing and advertising in
the United States where he held senior positions in J. Walter Thompson Co. and
Dow Jones International Marketing Services for a number of years. He is presently
an Executive Director of Forefront Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock

Exchange.

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond, aged 43, has been appointed as a Director of the
Company since 2006. He holds a Master’s degree in Science majoring in Japanese
business studies and Bachelor's degree in Business Administration majoring in
accounting in the United States of America. He is a Certified Public Accountants
both in Hong Kong and in the United States of America and is also a Certified Tax
Adviser in Hong Kong. He is also an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and also a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has over |5
years of working experience in the areas of auditing, accounting, taxation, company
secretarial, corporate finance and financial management. He is the Chairman and an
Executive Director of iMerchants Limited, an Executive Director of Capital VC
Limited and an Independent Non-executive Director of Birmingham International
Holdings Limited, Tack Fiori International Group Limited and Chanceton Financial

Group Limited, all of which are publicly listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Frank H. Miu, aged 63, has been appointed as a Director of the Company since
June 201 1. He holds a Juris Doctor degree from Harvard Law School and a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Economics and Accounting from St. John's University of Minnesota.
He is a member of the American Bar Association and the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Apart from professional experience in law and accounting, he has
extensive exposure to various industries including financial services. Mr. Miu was
formerly an independent non-executive director of the Company from March 2004
to March 2007; an executive director of Radford Capital Investment Limited from
March 2009 to December 2009 and from June 2011 to July 2011; and an executive
director of Dragonite International Limited from April 2010 to May 2010 and a non-
executive director from May 2010 to July 201 1. Mr. Miu is presently an independent
non-executive director of Mascotte Holdings Limited, Tack Fiori International Group
Limited and Freeman Financial Corporation Limited. Aside from directorships in the
aforesaid public companies listed on the Stock Exchange, he is also an independent
non-executive director of Duoyuan Global Water Inc., a public company listed on

New York Stock Exchange.

Mr. Gary Drew Douglas, aged 62, has been appointed as a Director of the
Company since June 201 1. He holds a Master's degree in Business Administration
from University of Santa Clara, US.A. Mr. Douglas has over 20 years of professional
experience in general management, IT business, project management, and
commercial and retail banking in Japan and U.S.A. From June 2011 to October 2011,
Mr. Douglas was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Radford
Capital Investment Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Douglas is
presently the Managing Director of Dragonite International Limited and an
independent non-executive director of Freeman Financial Corporation Limited, both

are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) submits their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December 2011
(the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the business of property investment, investment
in securities trading, money lending and investment holding. Details of the principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in

note |5 to the consolidated financial statements,

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income on pages 3| and 32.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to HK$100,000.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 36 and 37 and note

27 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past

five financial years is set out on pages 127 and |28.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the

Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in note 24 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the
Year are set out in notes 26 and 28 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements. As at 31 December 2011, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries has outstanding share options.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company purchased a total of 2 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange") at an aggregate consideration of HK$0.1 | and the

details are set out below:
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Aggregate
consideration

paid (excluding

Number of shares expenses)
Date repurchased Price per share BHARKE
SR BERGHHA BRERK (FEERX)

|7 October 201 | “E——%+A++tH

2 HK$0.054 7 7T HK$0.1 | 77T

The repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued share capital of the Company

was diminished by the nominal value thereof.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

BOROHETE MARFAZCETREIER
Z B R 2 EEHDA -
BREXFBREES  REEAR - ARAREME

AHWBATBERE  HEIREART L
AEmES -

15



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2011 Annual Report
Directors’ Report
EEERE

16

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive Directors

Chuang Yueheng, Henry

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong

Tsui Hung Wai, Alfred (appointed with effect from | June 201 1)
Fung Yue Tak, Derek (appointed with effect from | June 2011)
King Phillip (resigned with effect from 30 September 201 1)
Wang Lin (resigned with effect from 30 June 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Wing Ping

Wen Louis

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

Frank H. Miu (appointed with effect from | June 2011)

Gary Drew Douglas (appointed with effect from | June 2011)

Liu Jian (resigned with effect from | August 201 1)

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Tsui Hung Wai, Alfred, Mr. Fung Yue Tak, Derek, Mr. Frank H. Miu and Mr. Gary Drew
Douglas (all of whom are additional Directors appointed during the Year) retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election at that meeting.

In accordance with Article 120 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Dr.
Chuang Yueheng, Henry and Mr. Wong Ying Seung, Asiong retire by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

The term of office of each Independent Non-executive Director is for a period of
three years but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting do not have service contracts which are not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as

follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 3|
December 201 I:
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Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held of shareholding
Exnsg BEME FEERRYE RESNEIHL
Chuang Yueheng, Henry Beneficial interest 43,042,937 5.92%
HERE EnEn
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong Beneficial interest 6,332,000 0.87%
Tl Eatln
Fung Yue Tak, Derek Beneficial interest 20,000,000 2.75%
B Enfkn
At no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding company, ARA - EEMERAT - HELQRIKRRM

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time

during the Year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 201 1, the following interests and short positions of 5% or more
of the issued share capital and underlying shares of the Company (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the register of

interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position

TERFARHEHMATRARORAEBER®G
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Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage

Name Nature of interest shares held of shareholding
=L EEME FREBRHEE REBOBEIL
Freeman Financial Corporation Limited Interest of controlled corporation 26,000,000 3.57%

SOERERERA sl ER #
Beneficial interest 128,212,678 17.63%
EanfEs

154,212,678 21.20%
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no person, other than the B EXFEEEI  R_E——F+_R=+

Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out herein this report, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong to all staff.
Under the MPF Scheme, employer and employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income. Details of the

retirement scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the Year, the percentages of the Group's turnover, excluding turnover from
trading of investments, attributable to its largest customer and five largest customers

were 31% and 47% respectively.

Cordoba Homes Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Cordoba
Group”), the associates of the Company, is one of the five largest customers of the
Group referred to above. In the opinion of the directors, transactions with Cordoba
Group were carried out on terms no less favourable than terms with independent

third parties.

As the Group had no significant purchases during the Year, the information on major

suppliers is not presented.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the Year did a director, an associate of a
director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors of the Company owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share

capital) have any material interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association of
the Company, or the laws of Hong Kong, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of events after the reporting period are set on in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for each of the three years
ended 31 December 2011 were audited by Mazars CPA Limited, Certified Public
Accountants. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Willie International Holdings Limited

Dr. Chuang Yueheng, Henry

Chairman

29 March 2012
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to maintain
high standards of corporate governance, integrity and to ensure transparent and
adequate levels of disclosure. The Company has complied with all code provisions
set out in Appendix |4 Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “"CG
Code") of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) throughout the year
ended 3| December 2011 (the "Year").

The Board will continue to review and recommend such steps as appropriate in a

timely manner in order to comply with the requirements of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has complied with the requirements for director’s securities
transactions stated in the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
(the "Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All

Directors of the Company has confirmed that they have complied with the

Listed Issuers”

requirements as set out in the Model Code for the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING
The Board comprises nine members as at the date of this report and their

positions are as follows:

Executive Directors

Chuang Yueheng, Henry (Chairman)
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong (Vice Chairman)
Tsui Hung Wai, Alfred (Managing Director)
Fung Yue Tak, Derek

Independent Non-executive Directors
Cheung Wing Ping

Wen Louis

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

Frank H. Miu

Gary Drew Douglas
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The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall business strategy, management
planning and control of the Company. The management is responsible for day-to-day
management of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). All
Directors have accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to carry out their
duties in an efficient and effective manner. Details of the backgrounds and
qualifications of the Directors are set out in the section headed "Biographies of
Directors” on pages || to |3 of this annual report. None of the members of the

Board have, in any respect, relation to each other in any circumstances.

All Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for the best interests of the
Company and the stakeholders of the Company. Other than the statutory duties
imposed on each of them, all of the Directors have exercised due care in monitoring
the corporate matters of the Company and have provided grave concern, sufficient

time and attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the Group.

For the sake of transparency and independency of the management of the Company,
duties of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are segregated and not executed by the same individual. The Chairman is
responsible for the management of the Board and external corporate
communication. The Vice Chairman serves as the deputy to the Chairman. The
Managing Director is responsible for the day-to-day operation, among other matters,

the implementation of overall strategy of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed by reference to their
respective qualification and experience to ensure that they are competent to
perform their duties and to protect the interests of the stakeholders. The
independent non-executive Directors were appointed with specific term by the
Company and they are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the
independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board assessed and concluded that all the independent non-executive

Directors are independent under the definition of the Listing Rules.
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The Board held eighteen full board meetings in 201 |. Details of the attendance of ~ EBEZEER_T——FBIT+/\R2BEZK

the Board members are as follows: T EFERECHRFROT
Executive Directors Attendance HITES HE=R
Chuang Yueheng, Henry 18/18 HRE 18/18
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong 18/18 T 18/18
Tsui Hung Wai, Alfred (appointed with effect from | June 201 1) 10/18 wBE(M-_T— 10/18
NA—BEZE)
Fung Yue Tak, Derek (appointed with effect from | June 201 1) 10/18 BHER_E——F 10/18
~NA—BEZE)
King Phillp (resigned with effect from 30 September 201 1) 12/18 SER(R=T——4F 12/18
A= + HEHE)
Wong Lin (resigned with effect from 30 June 201 1) 3/18 IRRZT-——F A=THEE) 3/18
Independent Non-executive Directors Attendance BYFHTES HE =
Cheung Wing Ping 14/18 REET 14/18
Wen Louis /18 il S 11/18
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 8/18 B 2 85 8/18
Frank H. Miu (appointed with effect from | June 201 1) 4/18 BFERT——F 4/18
NA—BEZE)
Gary Drew Douglas (appointed with effect from | June 201 1) 4/18 Gary Drew Douglas (A= ——F 4/18
NA—BELRME)
Liu Jian (resigned with effect from | August 2011) 2/18 gl (R=F——FNA—BEHD) 2/18

Save for regular board meetings held in 201 |, meetings of the Directors were held BR-IZ-——FRIZEZEEHRGHIN &

to discuss and transact other special businesses. The Board members are provided EeNRTLETRAEEEMEREIE &
with appropriate and sufficient information in a timely manner to keep abreast of ~ EEXEERENEEEETEZER  FK
the Group’s latest developments. All businesses transacted at the board meetings ETRARBZENEREN - MARESE
are properly documented and recorded. CEERNFEHCZEFERCH -
TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS EEEF

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal induction to BREZECHESHERMELZE EXAZA
ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding of (i) the business and B/ UEREATEEZREIAEE X5
operations of the Group; (ii) his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing ~ R&i& ; (i)RE LR REBERBRITZ
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements; (iii) the Compliance Manual of the BBEREM (WARAZTHRFMR: Rivig
Company and (iv) the Model Code. PR -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee™)
was formed in June 2005. The Company formulated written terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee and the adopted terms of reference are in

compliance with the code provision in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee, among others, are (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and (i) to review the special
remuneration packages of all executive Directors by reference to the corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time. During the Year, the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the remuneration package for the

Directors, senior management and general staff of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three

independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director, namely:

Frank H. Miu (Chairman)
Wen Louis

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 201 1. Details of the attendance

of the Remuneration Committee meeting are set out below:

Committee members Attendance
Frank H. Miu (appointed with effect from 29 March 2012) —
Wen Louis [/
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond [/1
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong 11

¥FMZzES
ARRlzEMEEE ([HFMEEE] R
TERAEK - ARAEHFMEER
ERESHE  BFfMEMCBEEERA
BTAEN ZHRE -

FMEE S I ERBETPBRIRARRY
ESNERERBZMEFMBRRIRERNE
FeRMEER  (12ZEFETHAEZR
FEERANUBIMERITES ZHRIHM
HR -RAFER  FHZEEERAAEKHE
BT SREEER-RBEZHMGSE -

RARERH  FHEE @M =RBUIFNT
BESR—RHTESANK - 28

2% (F)

B

8 283

T

FMEEEeRN S —FBTT7T—R8F - F
WExEeezLEHERBOT

ZEERE HER

2% (R_T——F —
“A-tTNHEZT)

PeE S /1

iy /1
Tibx /1



NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee on 29 March 2012,
Hence, the Company during the Year did not have a nomination committee for the
appointment of directors. The Board is empowered under the Company’s articles of
association to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an additional member of the Board. Candidates to be selected and recommended
are those who are experienced, competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary duties and
duties of skill, care and diligence to a standard required for listed companies’
Directors. By convention, a proposal for the appointment of a new director with
detailed information of his/her educational and professional qualifications and the
relevant working experience is submitted to the Board for decision making. The
Board believes that it has sufficient measures to evaluate the proposed appointment

and to conclude their decision objectively.

At every annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement

at least once every three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee™) was established in
January 2003 and written terms of reference were formulated. The primary duties of

the Audit Committee, among others, are:

(i) to communicate with the management of the Company from time to time;
(i) to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company;
(i) to review the effectiveness of its internal control systems; and

(iv) to review the interim and annual results of the Group.
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The Audit Committee comprises five independent non-executive Directors as at the

date of this report, namely:

Cheung Wing Ping (Chairman)
Wen Louis

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

Frank H. Miu

Gary Drew Douglas

During the Year, the Audit Committee met two times with the external auditor and/
or representatives of the management of the Company. The attendance records of

each Audit Committee member in 201 | are set out below:

Committee members Attendance
Cheung Wing Ping 212
Wen Louis 212
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 212
Frank H. Miu (appointed with effect from | September 201 1) I/
Gary Drew Douglas (appointed with effect from | September 201 1) [/1

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s unaudited interim results of the six
months ended 30 June 201 | and audited annual results for the financial year ended
31 December 2011 with the conclusion that the preparations of such results have

been complied with the applicable accounting standards.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the external
auditor and reviewing any non-audit services performed by the external auditor.
During the Year, the remuneration paid and payable to the Company's auditor,

Mazars CPA Limited, for the provision of services as follows:

RAREAHERZBESMARBUFNTE
EHEK BR

RET (L)

Pl S

£ 2 88

Gary Drew Douglas

RAEER - %T?§§@ 1SN RZ BT K o
ARBEBERREBITMASHE - _T——
FRERZ AﬁﬁXEZ@ SR

ZEERE HE =
REF 22
BE 212
5 2 83 212

BHMZT——FNLA—BEZE) 1/
Gary Drew Douglas (R =ZF——%F
hA—BEZT) 1

ENZEECENARRAE-_T—%1A
STHEREAZAEERTFREERBES
-5+ A=t-RUURFEZREY
FEXE UIRARSFEIRENAERZ
EREK

SR EE
BERZESARESINERHE 2 T s
SN BRI R 2 E AL BRTS - RAFE
A BRARAGZEMISESHELAER

DRl REMOREMES AT :

Audit services % RS HK$970,000 7 7T
Non-audit services (including tax services and review IR
of interim report and financial information) (BERBEREREMTPRERIBEER)  HK$348,000 T

HK$ 1,318,000 7 7T




INTERNAL CONTROLS

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Group maintains a sound and
effective system of internal controls. The Company has formulated and adopted a
Compliance Manual and Accounting Procedures to enhance better internal control
and such Compliance Manual and Accounting Procedures would be reviewed by the
Company from time to time. The Company has also implemented practical and
effective control systems with reporting lines, reporting, responsibilities and proper
procedures. The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system which covers all material controls, including

financial, operational and compliance control.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and believe that these statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs and of its results. The responsibilities of
the Directors and Auditor are set out on pages 29 to 30 of this Annual Report. The
Board has adopted appropriate accounting policies and made proper estimates for

the preparation of financial statements.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief
and having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cause significant doubt upon
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board therefore continues
to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the financial statements for the

financial year of 201 1.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has established the following channels to communicate with

shareholders:

(i) corporate information is made available on its own website (http://

www.willie273.com);

(i) company announcements and corporate communication are made through the

Stock Exchange website and its own website; and

(i) printed corporate communication such as annual report, interim report,
circulars and listing documents are sent to shareholders who have requested

for printed copies.

Individual resolution has been proposed by the Chairman in the general meetings
for each substantial issue. At the general meetings of the Company, the Chairman of
the Company and/or the members of the Board were available to answer questions

raised by the shareholders.

VOTING BY POLL
All resolutions put forward at the general meetings of the Company were voted by
way of poll and the announcements on the poll vote results were made by the

Company after the respective general meetings in the manner prescribed under
Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Willie International Holdings Limited

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong

Vice Chairman

29 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ 12 BiEM ¥R &

BEMAZARS

To the shareholders of
Willie International Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Willie International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group") set
out on pages 3| to 126, which comprise the consolidated and the Company's
statement of financial position as at 31 December 201 |, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Mazars CPA LIMITED

TG st o o 5 7 A LA
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

VS A S VL 1 85 T BRI S 408

HREABEBRERARQARE
(REEZMAE L2 FRARA])

ZEERENENEF126B 2B FIRBE
hﬁ@/ﬂUﬁ@ﬂD&ﬁW% al (S8 A
(BB KERBRE  EHOER-S—
FHZRA=+—BZEAUMBHRRABER &

REZHMBRREE  BEZBULFE2HE
2ERER  GEREREZDRRESHENE
T UARFESHHEBEREMREER -

ESHGEMBBREREZER
BAREFARARREAACHMAERML

BERBHREEUNRBEARKIGHREER
FHGRSMBRE  YEABEERR/LEN

MR - NERARBRED S RTFEMH
W SR B 2 B A SR -

V%WZEE

FLEANREESCER  HAEHEAH
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 3| December 2011 and
of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 March 2012

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793
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Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——f —2—FF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Pt &E TR TiET
Turnover ExXH 5 (31,180) 55,698
Other income H b Y A 6 12,417 39,822
Employee benefits expenses B BRRA X (10,178) (10,533)
Depreciation e (2,583) (29,861)
(Provision) Reversal of *& (BfHE)
allowance for doubtful debts B R D (23,163) 15,601
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AJ B 7
financial assets BEERERRE (5,808) —
Net loss on disposal of HEREA R ER
interest in subsidiaries ZERRE — (47,579)
Loss on deemed disposal BIELEHE AT
of interest in associates w2 EB 30 (13,236) (18971)
Net fair value loss on HIEEEREZ
investments held for trading NEEERFE (437,350) (107,899)
Net fair value (loss) gain on RERERKIETE /R
investments designated as NEEIRZREZ
at fair value upon initial recognition NFE (BE) K %EE (16,349) [,471
Net gain arising from changes REMELATEE
in fair value of investment properties PTEE & 2 W22 S 58 — 43,68
Other operating expenses H@as i (24,948) (39,166)
Finance costs A& B AR 8 (8r1) (10,018)
Share of results of associates FEIEE & ARl 2 %4 16 (2,068) (84,940)
Loss before taxation BB ATEE 8 (554,527) (192,694)
Taxation BiIE 10 (288) (2,905)
Loss for the year FREE [ (554,815) (195,599)
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SEEHEWER

2011 2010
—EF——fF —T-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P E TER FET
Other comprehensive (loss) income: Hit2mE (BB WA
Share of translation reserve of associates iR =N R (148) —
Translation reserve realised HE—RKBAF
upon disposal of a subsidiary iS3-SE Wl 2R — 794
Income tax relating to components EREMZEKA
of other comprehensive income B ZFrEH — —
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRE2EHEBRERE (554,963) (194,805)
Loss for the year attributable to: FRTHALEEEE :
Equity holders of the Company ARARERTEA (552,298) (169,285)
Non-controlling interests FERER (2,517 (26,314)
(554,815) (195,599)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: TIHALTEREZEBEARE !
Equity holders of the Company KRAERTEAR A (552,446) (168,849)
Non-controlling interests AR = (2,517) (25,956)
(554,963) (194,805)
(Restated)
Loss per share BRER (&7%)
— Basic and diluted —BERREE 13 (HK$1.638T)  (HK$254 %)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2011 i RFEREZERERAR
e MR RE

At 31 December 201 | RZE——F+-A=+—H

2011 2010
—g-—-%  -T-%%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE TER FHAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R&E 14 2,597 5343
Interest in associates Bt N AR [6 567,829 583,281
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ENKEE |7 104,717 26,020
Other investments Hik & 18 4,580 —
Deposits for acquisition BERE
of investment properties MEES 37(b) 830 —
Loans receivable JEIE K 20 3,051 4,000
683,604 618,644
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value BRAFET ABzE
through profit or loss L EE 19 711,170 677,842
Loans receivable W E R 20 79,955 198,280
Other receivables H 4 el 5108 21 16,107 179,887
Cash and cash equivalents RekRe%E 22 335,623 317,478
1,142,855 1,373,487
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables Hofth & 15 FROB 23 3,016 3,467
Tax payable FERT K 316 28
Interest-bearing borrowings SFEER 24 33,311 —
36,643 3,495
Net current assets BERBEE 1,106,212 1,369,992
NET ASSETS REE 1,789,816 1,988,636
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2011 2010
—E——f —T—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P &E TR TET
Capital and reserves XK f#E
Share capital LN 26 7,274 148,035
Reserves ¥ 1,785,309 1,840,601
Equity attributable to ARAEERAA
equity holders of the Company FE 5 7 5 1,792,583 1,988,636
Non-controlling interests FIERE R (2,767) —
TOTAL EQUITY BED 1,789,816 1,988,636
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2012 HESER_F _F=A-TNABRERR
HETIE
Tsui Hung Wai, Alfred Wong Ying Seung, Asiong
wEE Tl
Director Director

EF EF
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Statement of Financial Position BF#&HR R R =

At 31 December 201 | RZE——F+-A=+—H

2011 2010
—g—-5 —T-Tf
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE TER FHAT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries BB A R = 15 895,652 1,033,393
Interest in associates RNy |6 567,829 583,281
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ENKEE 17 77,425 3,020
1,540,906 1,619,694

Current assets RBEE
Other receivables Hfth fe e 5118 21 23 160,049
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeF 22 221,414 176,101
221,437 336,150
Current liabilities HEAE

Other payables H At fE T 508 23 1,286 2,145
Tax payable JE A~ B 3K 288 —
1,574 2,145
Net current assets BRBEE 219,863 334,005
NET ASSETS REE 1,760,769 1,953,699

Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital LN 26 7,274 148,035
Reserves 1 27 1,753,495 1,805,664
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,760,769 1,953,699

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2012

Tsui Hung Wai, Alfred

HEFER T —_F=A-TABHERR

RETIE

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong

BIBE Tim#
Director Director
EE EE
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Attributable to the equity holders of the Company A7 & & 54 A b

Reserves Fff
Foreign
Share  currency Non-
Share Share Capital option  translation Accumulated Total controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  reserves  Subtotal interests Total
ki X BRE I Zit i FER
RA& BE i BE EXERE B % It B it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK000  HK000  HK$000  HKE000  HK$000  HK$000
Ten TEr TEr TEn TEr TEr TEnr TEr  TEr  TEn
(Notea)  (Noteb)  (Notec)  (Noted)
(Wita) (WiEb) (WiEd  (Wid)
At | January 2010 R-F-F%-A-H 59,745 2986963 10,075 = (794) (1127,677) 1,868,567 1928312 601,708 2,530,020
Loss for the year EnEE — - - — —  (169285) (169.285) (169285)  (26314)  (195599)
Other comprehensive income ~ EREHM
for the year 2EBA
Translation reserve realised HE-FHBAAR
upon disposal of a subsidiary & BB ENGR — — — — 436 — 436 436 358 794
Total comprehensive ER2EUA
income (loss) for the year (F8) A% - - — - £36  (169285) (168849) (168849)  (2595%)  (194805)
Transactions with equity holders HERFAARS
Placing of shares, net of expenses  RLERM  ENBRAX 82316 122982 — — = — 0982 20598 — 20529
Recognition of equity-settled  BERLIRELE
share-based payments bl IS = = = [514 = = 1514 [514 = 514
Issue of shares under share REBRET 2%
option scheme, net of expenses R} EMBEX 5974 17,901 = (1514) = = 16,387 236! — 22361
Non-controlling inerests HERERTRRAT
derecognised due to disposal  ([i&)) REMER
of nterest in Cordoba (57 [FE%E))
Homes Limited b a4l
(“Cordaba”) and s BIRAN
subsidiaries (‘Cordoba Group') ~ FFHERRER - - - - 358 (358) — —  (575752)  (575752)
Total transactions with HERREA
equity holders RA8E 88290 140883 — — 358 (358) 140883 29073 (575752)  (346579)
At 31 December 2010 R=B-8%
tZA=1-H 148035 3,127,846 10,075 = — (1,297320) 1,840,601 1,988,636 — 1,988,636
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #ReEREER

Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE

Autributabl to the equity holders of the Company & 2 E1iE &5 8 A S

Reserves 6
Foreign
Share  currency Non-
Share Share  Capital option  transhation  Accumulated Total controlling
cpital - premium  reserve  reserve  reserve losses ~reserves  Subtotal interests Tota
B B EEE A B & $8
B RE  RR 0 BE EXR® 0 ER 0 2R 0 M BR 4%
Notes HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000
it Tén TR TEn  fEn  TRr  TEn  fEn  TEr  TEn  fEn
(Notea) ~ (Noteb) ~ (Notec)  (Noted)
(ks (Bb) (b (e
At 1 January 2011 R-T—5-A-8 148035 3,127,846 10,075 - — (I297320) 1840601 1,988,636 — 1988636
Loss for th year EmER - - - - —  (58)  (5.29) (SS298)  (517)  (554815)
Other comprehensive lossfor the year ~ EREH2EER
Shre of foreign currency trangltion ElE07
reserve of assocites LERGE = = - - (148) - (148) (148) - (148)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~~ FR2EFEAE = = = = (148)  (552298)  (S52446)  (552d4d6)  (ASI7)  (354963)
Transactions with equiy holders HREREARS
First Capitl Reorganisaton, BRRAEE
net of expenses EARFX 242 (I45074) 145014 - - - -0 (60) - (60)
Issue of shares under rights issue, BRURATRE
net of expenses EARAR 20) BAS 262815 - - - — 20815 28650 — 2850
Second Capitl Reorgeniation, E_RBAER:
net of expenses BHBRR 26(d) @179y 2026 - - - - 12 (575) - (575)
Placing of shares, RER
net of expenses BARAX () & (e) 1,874 51931 = = = = 51931 59811 - 59811
Recogntion of equity-settled RARERS
share-based payments WA GIRES 2 - - - 530 - - 530 530 - 530
Issue of shares under share RERRES 2%
option scheme, net of expenses R EHABRX B8 M5 107 - (530) - — 964 loe7 — 087
Acquisition of subsidiaries YEHEAR - - - - - - - - (250) (2:0)
Total transactions with equity holders EERBHARZHE (140761) 497,154 = = = — 49154 356393 (250) 356,143
At 31 December 201 RZ%--F
tZA=t-H 1274 3625000 10,075 — (148) (1,849,618) 1,785,309 1,792,583 (2767) 1789816
Notes: Bt
(@)  The application of the share premium account is governed by Section 48B of the Hong a) BHaEREZERTEERAGHIFE48BIER
Kong Companies Ordinance. i o
(b)  The capital reserve was arisen from acquisition of interest in subsidiaries in prior years. (b) imﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬁrwﬁ%l‘ﬁ% RAERTE
(c)  The share option reserve relates to share options granted to eligible parties under the (c) BRERGEEREEARAREREFERTE
Company's share option scheme. BN T 2 BIRHE o
(d) The foreign currency translation reserve comprises of all foreign exchange differences (d) SMNEERRBEEDZEFIEBORBRRAE
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operation into the 7%$§Ii’i‘rb%%iz}aﬁﬁ/@ﬂ%%ﬁ&ﬁ&
Group's presentation currency and the Group's share of the foreign currency translation BIEGH SRR 2 NS ER R -

reserve of its associates.
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2011 2010
—g—-§  -T-IF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P et TER TET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Loss before taxation BrEi A E B (554,527) (192,694)
Depreciation e 2,583 29,861
Impairment loss on property, ME - BER
plant and equipment RiREBR = 1,173
Impairment loss on Al B 7
available-for-sale financial assets BERERBR 5,808 —
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEE 376 —
Provision (Reversal) of impairment HipiR B R E
loss on other investments BiEEE (#E) 1,320 (2476)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BE
plant and equipment R 2 e = (1,434)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREME 2 W — (29,358)
Net loss on disposal of interest in subsidiaries ~ H&MIE R Al 2 BEFHE — 47,579
Loss on deemed disposal of interest in associates 2 {EH &5 & A Rl < BB 13,236 18,971
Gain on disposal of HERHEENT
available-for-sale financial assets BEZ W= (1,531) —
Net gain arising from changes in REMEATEED
fair value of investment properties FTE 4 2 Wt 558 — (43,681)
Net fair value loss on HIEEEREZ
investments held for trading NEEEEFE 437,350 107,899
Net fair value loss (gain) on investments RERERRIETE /R
designated as at fair value NEEIRZREZ
upon initial recognition ATEER (W) #8 16,349 (1471
Provision (Reversal) of allowance REREE
for doubtful debts (Bfrm) 23,163 (15,601)
Equity-settled share-based payments PARR I 45 5 2 IR 17 1 3K 530 1,514
Interest income FEWA (3,032) (441)
Finance costs BMEKR 8l 10,018
Exchange gain, net E N 3 F 58 (65) —
Share of results of associates FEIEEE 2 R RIER 2,068 84,940
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2011 2010
—E2-—-F %
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B ax THERT TET
Changes in working capital: 2EELEY
Loans receivable W E R 99,003 (546,049)
Other receivables Hh fE W5k IR 152,138 377,297
Financial assets at fair value BATEGABR
through profit or loss 2 BEE (487,027) 32,591
Other payables H i fE T 50R (1,346) (4,214)
Cash used in operations KEFARS (293,523) (125,576)
Tax paid BHIE — (333)
Interest received [RY &SN 3,032 44|
Net cash used in operating activities REEBFMARELFE (290,491) (125,468)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELRE (719) (38,010)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME = (104,191)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEAHEENBKEE (85,106) —
Purchase of other investments BEHMKRE (5,900) (26,639)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WHEMELR - Mk
net of cash acquired EAZER 29 | (53,500)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEREME
investment properties e (830) —
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties &% &) % 2 i85 A = 148,800
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEREE
plant and equipment Z PG IA — 3,280
Proceeds from disposal of HERHEENBEE
available-for-sale financial assets Z g 5IA 12,032 —
Net cash inflow from disposal HERBA R EE
of interest in subsidiaries ZRERAFE = 35,464
Net cash inflow from disposal HEREEEER
of interest in Cordoba Group ZBRERANFE — 35,492
Net cash (used in) generated REXHK (FFA)
from investing activities FEREFE (80,522) 696
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A\
A

RERER

2011 2010
—E-—-F —Z-TF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(s THER THAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Capital reorganisation expenses RAEAFAZ (635) —
Placing of shares, net of expenses FEERD - EHIRFAX 59,811 205,298
Issue of shares under share RIB B R 8817
option scheme, net of expenses Bl - EHMBRRX 10,187 22,361
Issue of shares under rights BRI T
issue, net of expenses i - EMBRFEX 286,500 —
New bank loans raised FIERITER 33,303 128,049
Repayment of bank loans ERFTER = (99,859)
Interest paid RFLE (8) (10,018)
Net cash generated from MEEB RSB
financing activities ReFE 389,158 24583
Net increase in cash and ReRBREEE
cash equivalents ZEFE 18,145 121,059
Cash and cash equivalents FUzEE
at beginning of year kEEEE 317,478 196,419
Cash and cash equivalents FRZRE
at end of year REEE 22 335,623 317,478
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r& B #E Rz M s

GENERAL INFORMATION

Willie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"). The address of the registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of this annual report. The principal activities of the

Group are described in notes 5 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2010 consolidated
financial statements except for the adoption of the following new/revised

HKFRSs effective from the current year that are relevant to the Group.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set

out below.

Year ended 3| December 2011 £ 2
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
HKAS 24 (Revised): Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 was revised to include a new definition of related party and to
provide a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements in relation to
related party transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments,

with:

(a) a government that has control, joint control or significant influence over

the reporting entity; and

(b) another entity that is a related party because the same government has
control, joint control or significant influence over both the reporting

entity and the other entity.

The Group adopted the new definition in its accounting policies but such
adoption does not have an effect on the disclosures made in these

consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010: Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

The improvements comprise a number of improvements to HKFRSs including

the following that are considered to be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS | (Revised): Presentation of Financial Statements:

Clarification of Statement of Changes in Equity

The Amendments clarify that the reconciliation of each components of other
comprehensive income may be presented either in the statement of changes in
equity or in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. The Group has

decided to present it in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r& B #E Rz M s

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements is historical cost, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and certain available-for-sale financial assets, which are measured

at fair value as explained in the principal accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and all of its subsidiaries as at 3| December each year. The
financial statements of its subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year

as that of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and expenses and profits and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceased.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position, separately from equity holders of the Company.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree's
net assets in event of liquidation, is measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of measurement

basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Year ended 3| December 2011 £ 2
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the equity holders of the
Company and the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and

attributed to the equity holders of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest determined
at the date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are
recognised on the same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the
former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary is
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, jointly controlled entity or others

as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power to govern the

financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount on an individual basis. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which

is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

The Group’s interest in associates is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes the
Group's share of the post-acquisition results of the associates for the year The
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group's share of the
net assets of the associates and also goodwill. The Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses of the
associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the associate,
which includes any long term interests that, in substance, form part of the

Group's net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Gain or loss arising from dilution of interest in associates is recognised in profit

or loss.

On the loss of significant influence, the Group remeasures any retained interest
in the former associate at fair value. The difference between the fair value of
any retained investment and proceeds from disposing of the part interest in
the associate and the carrying amount of the investment at the date when
significant influence s lost is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of the former
associate are accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
former associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. The
fair value of the retained interest on the date of ceasing to be an associate is

regarded as the fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset subsequently.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in associates is
stated at cost less impairment loss determined on individual basis. The results
of associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

Year ended 3| December 2011 £ 2
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is measured at the excess of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of any previously held equity interest in the
acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiary. Goodwill arising on an
acquisition of an associate is measured as the excess of the cost of investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities

of the acquired associate.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is recognised as a separate asset.
Goodwill on acquisition of associates is included in interest in associates.
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, which is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or loss on disposal,
goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units. An impairment loss on goodwill

is not reversed.

In respect of a subsidiary, any excess of the acquisition date amounts of
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the acquired
subsidiary over the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase. In respect of an associate,
any excess of the Group's share of its net fair value of identifiable assets and

liabilities over the cost of investment is recognised immediately as income.

Other investments

Other investments are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the year in which

they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment
losses of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives as set
out below from the date on which they are available for use and after taking
into account their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and

depreciated separately:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of lease

Buildings 4%
Leasehold improvements 10% - 20%
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 20%
Office equipment 33'7.%
Motor vehicles 25%

Yacht 10%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which

the item is derecognised.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and on a

trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Group’s
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial asset expire or (i) the
Group transfers the financial asset and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. A financial liability
is derecognised when and only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets or financial liabilities not carried at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are direct attributable to the

acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial liabilities.

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. They are carried at fair value,

with any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are (i) acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives that are not
financial guarantee contracts or not designated and effective hedging

instruments,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r& B #E Rz M s

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss only if (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or (ii) they are
part of a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities that are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded

derivatives that would need to be separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire
hybrid contract may be designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative

is prohibited.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including other receivables and loans receivable are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are not held for trading. They are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, except where receivables
are interest-free loans and without any fixed repayment term or the effect of
discounting would be insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition over the period to maturity. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
either designated at this category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in
value recognised as a separate component of equity until the assets are sold,
collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the assets are determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
other comprehensive income is transferred to profit or loss as a reclassification

adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at

cost less impairment loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include other payables and interest-bearing
borrowings. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using effective interest method,
unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured at
their fair values and, if not designated as at fair value through profit or loss, are
subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount of the obligation under
the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS 37: Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the

revenue recognition policies.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is
objective evidence that financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed
in subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously recognised impairment
loss in profit or loss, is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value of available-for-sale equity
instrument after recognition of impairment loss is recognised in equity.
Reversal of impairment loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are reversed
through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was

recognised in profit or loss.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash equivalents
represent short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably and on the following bases:

Net income from the sales of investments at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised on the transaction date when the relevant sale and purchase

contract is entered into.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to

the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights to

receive payment have been established.

Foreign currencies translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are recognised in profit or loss except for
those arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or

losses are also recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r& B #E Rz M s

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies translation (Contd)
The results and financial position of all the Group's entities that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency (“foreign

operations”) are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

*  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented
and, where applicable, goodwill and fair value adjustments on the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation which are to be treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation, are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting

period;

*  Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are

translated at average exchange rate; and

* Al resulting exchange differences arising from the above translation and
exchange differences arising from a monetary item that forms part of the
Group's net investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal and external
sources of information to assess whether there is any indication that its
property, plant and equipment, other investments and investments in
subsidiaries and associates may be impaired or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately, except where the relevant asset is
carried at revalued amount in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease in accordance to the accounting policy relevant to that

asset.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont'd)

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as
income in profit or loss immediately, except where the relevant asset is carried
at revalued amount in which case the reversal of impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase in accordance to the accounting policy relevant to that

asset.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of the impairment loss for
goodwill is stated in the accounting policy for goodwill in the earlier part of

this note.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the temporary
investment of the specific borrowings, that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense

in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

As lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at
the amount of the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of

return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r& B #E Rz M s

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leasing (Contd)

As lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as finance lease obligation.
Finance charges, which represent the difference between the total leasing
commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to profit or
loss over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting

period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution scheme

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets of the scheme are

held separately from those of the Group in an independent administered fund.

Long service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service payments under the
Employment Ordinance is the amounts of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method and discounted
to its present value and after deducting the fair value of any related assets,

including those retirement scheme benefit.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees and consultants receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payment transactions, whereby the employees and consultants
rendered services in exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of
such transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value of share options
granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a reserve within equity. The fair value is determined using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions of
the transactions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the

Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the year(s) in which the vesting
conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting date"). During the
vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest ultimately
is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, with a

corresponding adjustment to the reserve within equity.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

options reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than
employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services received,
except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, at the date

the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r& B #E Rz M s

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the year as
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is recovered or liability is
settled, based on the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@)

(®)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the

Group if that person:

()
(i)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group or of

the parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

()

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related

to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is

an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in ().

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r& B #E Rz M s

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Related parties (Cont'd)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries of the

associate and a joint venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided to the Group’s chief operating decision makers for the purpose of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various

lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of services, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Year ended 3| December 2011 £ 2

“F——F+t-R=t—HLFE

ERHHE ®)
BEAL (B)
—AANTZERERR Y EZA LTS
ERETEEINEERYZALTTE

NEBRREKE B :

(@) ZBEATHFRREBHFEEH
(EIE

b) ZBEATWERBKFEFENTF
iR

€) ZBALTIZBALHEBLFAR
GRIEEIES-FNC

REHEE Aimm% KERRIBHEA
BBEARANNEBAR MaEARE
ﬁﬁ@é%@?%%%gp

PEEE
BARBRRMEBLLEDHRED
BEERERKTAKREEREE

FENELABARBEREB BT
WEGEHERSERERFHNGT
EHE—H -

BRIEALZ D BAMBEZHRANME
AFaf BREDPBEABRULESH
BER&HEE - EPRUKER - =R

BRERNTEREERBEERM -

I FF R B KA 2 7 80 40 R B i 2 K
Bip LR - RIRT A G — -

59



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2011 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+_A=+—HIEFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new / revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has not early adopted. The
directors are in the process of assessing the possible impact on the future
adoption of these new / revised HKFRSs, but are not yet in a position to
reasonably estimate their impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS | (Revised) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters'

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfer of Financial
Assets'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying
Assets?

Amendments to HKAS | (Revised) Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income?

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits*

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements*

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates

and Joint Ventures*

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B FE R FTMIEE

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs (Cont'd)

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS |3

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

HKFRS 9

Joint Arrangements*

Disclosures of Interests
in Other Entities®

Fair Value Measurement*

Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities’

Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Cost in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine*

Financial Instruments®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2012

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2015

Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made by
the management in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.
They affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They
are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of revision and future

periods, in case the revision also affects future periods.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if interest in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities have suffered any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
and follow the guidance of HKAS 39 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the approach are stated in the

respective accounting policies. The assessment requires an estimation of future

4.

FERER A RAE

REAGAMBERRE  EEEBELE
BRRZEARBEAREELE 8
AEBEEHBRCER EE - BF

bz 2H®eE  URMELZHEES
T2 WISETIAHE - BAME
BERHAGERCHRREERE (REY
ERERTEBABZAREHE 2 BH)
fEH - RIEBEBERT » @5t 2B35
LS ETHR R AR R AR (W BB IERT 7R
FERRERE) T AR -

REREWHERE
$EI&§%mJEW%%%i¢%ﬂ
RIFBRE - BERARAREHER
2 \ﬁ@meﬁéﬁéﬂEH
IR B BEERRZE LR 2 A
THE - AEFBERNEE TR

H-

cash flows, including expected dividends from the assets and the selection of F o ZBNGARTEEZRRR R

appropriate discount rates. Future changes in financial performance and E(BEBRERE) RERRENREX -

position of these entities would affect the estimation of impairment loss and RZERNTARRUBRERMAZ EDE

cause the adjustments of their carrying amounts. FERNEBBRM  UBEARBRARE
g

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RBERBE

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the Group is based on
the evaluation by management of the collectability of the loans receivable. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate

realisation of these receivables, including assessing the current creditworthiness

AEEIREFRBERRNEREER
HENER 2T EEEFG - FhZ
FREFARE BTN (BREFES
ERAEREEMNR KBEERCR) B

and the past collection history of each borrower. If the financial conditions of RIEMAREHE - WEZZFRRAZH
these borrowers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability BiknEl  SEBERENRS - QB
to make payments, additional allowance will be required. AHREEINEL -
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TURNOVER

Turnover recognised from the principal activities of the Group during the year
including investment holding, trading of investments, property investment and

provision of financial services is as follows:

2011 5% )EZ%UIB%‘?HEEFE'RT

RS ERR M T

EXE
AEERNFAKE 2 TEXK (BRERE

Eﬁx»“é“%?&,éf MERERRESR
MR7) TR < S EBMT ¢

2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
Net (loss) gain from the sale of investments HERRATEFAERZ

at fair value through profit or loss* REMG (BE) Wa¥FsE (54,744) 1,529

Interest income from loans FEM B S e H A FE M R 1B 2
and other receivables FEHA 17,020 19,676
Dividend income from listed investments EHIRE ZRBWA 6,544 3,643
Rental income e A — 30,850
(31,180) 55,698

HK$816,704,000).

Represents the proceeds from the sale of investments at fair value through profit
or loss of HK$454,088,000 (2010: HK$818,233,000) less cost of sales and
carrying value of the investments sold of HK$508,832,000 (201/0:

* RHERATEGABRIREMER
T8 454,088,0008 7L (= F —F F :
818,233,000 ) B E KA RE L E
K& M BRE (508,832,000 0 (= F—
T : 816,704,000 1) °

OTHER INCOME Htg A
2011 2010
—g--F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Interest income from financial institutions REEBEENN S A 653 44|
Bond interest income (EE IS N 2,379 —
Corporate guarantee fee NEERE 4,378 52
Commission income AakA 2,973 733
Exchange gain E R s 82 252
Gain on disposal of investment property HEREYE 2 W = 29,358
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEENKEE L
financial assets Wz 1,531 —
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEREHEZ
plant and equipment Wz — 1,434
Reversal of impairment loss on RO H R &R E
other investments B8 — 2,476
Others Htb 11 5076
12,417 39,822
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The directors have been identified as the chief operating decision makers to
evaluate the performance of operating segments and to allocate resources to
those segments based on the Group's internal reporting in respect of these
segments. The directors consider trading of investments, provision of financial
services, property investment and investment holding are the Group's major
operating segments. Segment results represent the profit earned or loss
incurred by each segment. The following analysis is the measure reported to
chief operating decision makers for the purpose of resources allocation and

assessment of segment performance.
Operating segments of the Group comprise the following:

Trading of investments Purchase and sale of securities and provision

of securities services

Provision of financial Provision of loan financing services

services

Property investment Holding properties for rental

and capital appreciation

Investment holding Holding investments for dividend and

investment income and capital appreciation

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reporting segments with reference
to turnover generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of

assets attributable to those segments.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. SHERE)
Segment revenue and results IWMUARRE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from AEEREEHHE QEA
operations by operating segment: REEHFWT :
Year ended 3| December 2011 BE-F-—-F+-A=t+-HL
£E
Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Unallocated Total
BERE RUSRER NERE REZR AR @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEn TiEn TR TiEn TR
Segment revenue ik L ON
Tumover 525 (48.200) 9602 - 7418 (31,180)
Segment results PHRE (496,227) (10,738) (52) (514) (31,611) (539,142)
Loss on deemed disposal R {FHEBE AR
of interest in associates 4.2 B#8 - - - (13,236) (13,236)
Share of results of EiEBenn
assaciates LEE - - - (2,08) (2,068)
Finance costs BERK (@81 = = = (81)
Loss before taxation RHAEE (554,527)
Taxation i = = = (288) (288)
Loss for the year EnEE (554,815)
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7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

(a) Segment revenue and results (Cont'd)

Year ended 3| December 2010

FE TR MR

7. oHER &)

(a)

ﬁ"‘[‘ﬂ&)&&%éﬁ(ﬁ)
BE-T-TFt+-A=1t—-HL

£

Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Unallocated Total
BERE RESERH ES - REZR APE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T TR T TR
Segment revenue AHUA
Turnover EXE 5172 19,594 30850 82 = 55,698
Segment results THRE (100283) 28,070 73470 (604) (31839) (31,186)
Net loss on disposal of ~ HEMBAT
interest in subsidiaries BR/ERTE = = = (47.579) — (47579)
Loss on deemed disposal R (N E &
of interest in associates AR L 1 - - - (18971) - (18971)
Share of results of associates FEfGB & AR 2 %& - — - (84940) - (84,940)
Finance costs HERK — = = = (10018) (10,018)
Loss before taxation RHAER (192,694)
Taxation il - - (2.905) - = (2.905)
Loss for the year ERER (195599)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from

external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment results represent the results achieved by
each segment without allocation of central administration costs including
directors’ emoluments. This is the measure method reported to the chief
operating decision makers for the purpose of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance.

ERA2INDBRAEREINEE
PEBA » LR E D HE
HE -

ERDBOETHREL M BR
RIGE2PTE A RS R BR

NEREIEE D BB ES KA
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ERERRELBAMFAENE -



7.

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2011 3 BAIEBRIZERBERA R

SEMBRRMEE

Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. DHER (E)
Segment assets and liabilities (b) PHEERAE
An analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by operating segments is AEEREENHE D 2EERA
set out below. BEAMMT o
Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Total
EERE RUSRRE MERE REEZR st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FERT FERT FERT TR
At 3| December RZ-ZT——%
2011 +t=A=+-—8H
Assets &8E
Segment assets D EPEE 822,090 83,767 830 330,843 1,237,530
Interest in /N
associates Ea — — — 567,829 567,829
Unallocated assets &7 Bt & & = — — — 21,100
Total assets BEE 1,826,459
Liabilities =N
Segment liabilities & & & (33,413) (291) (42) (2,159) (35,905)
Unallocated ADE
liabilities afE — — — — (738)
Total liabilities wafE (36,643)
At 3] December RZZE—TF
2010 +=ZA=+—H”
Assets &E
Segment assets DEEE 815236 217,663 — 350,939 1,383,838
Interest in AN
associates s — — — 583,281 583,281
Unallocated assets KD BCE E — — — — 25012
Total assets BEE 1,992,131
Liabilities =N
Segment liabilities 7 &P & & (168) (1,396) — (1,210) (2,774)
Unallocated AAEC
liabilities BfE — — — — 721)
Total liabilities mafm (3:495)
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7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont'd)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

e Segment assets include mainly all tangible assets, available-for-sale
financial assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans receivable, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. All
assets are allocated to operating segments other than unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a

group basis.

*  Segment liabilities include other payables, interest-bearing
borrowings and tax payable. All liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than unallocated head office and corporate

liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. SHER#E)
(c) Other segment information (c) HtboHERN
An analysis of the Group’s other segment information by operating AEEREED DD 2 HthHE
segments is set out below. BREIIMT -
Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Unallocated Total
BERE RUSRER IE3 4 REZR AR @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiEn TR TiEn TR
Year ended 3| B2-%--5+ZR
December 201 | ST-HLEE
Capital expenditure ERRX — - 830 90,806 987 92,623
Depreciation e = = = = 2,583 2,583
Interest income KA (3,031) - — - () (3.032)
Allowance for doubtful debts &% & - 20,271 - 2,892 - 23,163
Gain on disposal of available- & ATt {1
for-sale financial assets BHEE NG = = = (1,531) = (1,531)
Impairment loss on available- 7] #t{t & E1 7%
forsale financial assets ~ AERERR - - - 5,808 - 5,808
Impairment loss on EftRERE
other investments BE = = = 1,320 = 1,320
Impairment loss on goodwill 78R (EEE — = = 376 — 376
Year ended 3| HE-Z-ZE+CR
December 2010 ST-HIEEE
Capital expenditure EXRY - = 177218 26667 17319 221,004
Depreciation e — — 16,18 — 13,743 29,861
Interest income MEYA (438) = = = () (441)
Net gain arising from RENELTE
changes in fair value of ~ EEEEZ
investment properties W Fe - - (43,681) - - (43,681)
Reversal of allowance RERRE
for doubtful debts iqE — (15601) — — — (15601)
Impairment loss on property, #1% * BE R
plant and equipment REAEER = = 1173 = = [I73
Reversal of impairment loss B EIE {117 &
on other investments HEER - - - (2476) - (2476)
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7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

(d) Geographical information
All (2010: over 95%) of the Group's trading of investments, investment
holding, property investment and provision of financial services are

carried out in Hong Kong during the year.

(e) Information about major customers
Included in the turnover arising from provision of financial services,
property investment and investment holding segments of HK$ 17,020,000
(2010: HK$50,526,000) are turnover of HK$7,418,000 (20/0:
HK$19,048,000) which arose from interest income (2010: interest and
rental income) from one (2010: one) of the Group's largest customers

which contributed more than 0% of the Group's turnover.

SEMBRRMEE

7.

AEBER (2)
(d) HEEH

(e)

AFER  ARENBEERE &
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EBIZEEFER
FARMERERE WERERR
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8. KRBAIEGE

2011 2010
—2——F —F-%
This is stated after charging (crediting): ek (GTA) TFER : HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET
Finance costs & A
Interest on: A
Bank and other borrowings wholly ARTFNEHEER
repayable within five years ZR1T RE MK 8l 2,694
Bank and other borrowings wholly ARTFREBER
repayable over five years 2 RIT REAME K = 7,324
8l 10018
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the interest on bank and BE_Z——5R-ZT-TF+_A=
other borrowings which contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to T—BILEE  sFEARERKEEERK
HK$81,000 and HK$10,018,000 respectively. A2 RAT R E b 18 K m ME D5 &
81,000}%7E&10,018,000}%7E °
Other items HiEE
Employee benefits expenses BB X H
(excluding directors) (TEFEER)
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %?A R REWAS 6,174 6,682
Contributions to defined retirement scheme RIRGH B3R 234 278
Employees' share-based payments D/\Hxﬁﬁﬁkﬁftmaﬁé\ 243 1,376
6,651 8,336
Auditor's remuneration ZEED BN 2 970 [,670
Operating lease payments on equipment REZKEROER 8l 79
Operating lease payments on premises BFEZKERNER 2,229 370
Impairment loss on property, ER e
plant and equipment 2 BIEEE — 1,173
Provision (Reversal) of impairment H g &R E
loss on other investments BiEEE (BE) 1,320 (2,476)
Impairment loss on goodwill included ARG E
in other operating expenses H B EEE 376
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SEMBRRMEE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 9. ESMERAEBBHFAL
INDIVIDUALS
Directors’ emoluments EEMe
The aggregate amount of emoluments received or receivable by the ARRESERFIER 2 M2 BE N
Company's directors are as follows: 1

Year ended 3| December 201 | BHE-_Z——+-A=1+—HLEE

72

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to defined
and benefits retirement
Directors’ in kind scheme
fees  F& - RH ERENK Total
EEZHE REVRS sEHR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT TERT
Executive directors HITES
Chuang Yueheng, Henry HRE = 180 181
Fung Yue Tak, Derek HHE
(appointed on | June 201 1) (RZZ2——F
NA—BEZE) — 420 7 427
King Phillip K
(resigned on (RZT——F
30 September 201 1) NA=+HEE) — 315 9 324
Tsui Hung Wai, Alfred RIBE
(appointed on | June 201 1) (R=B——F
NA—BEZE) — 385 7 392
Wang Lin (resigned I (RZ2—F
on 30 June 201 1) NAZTHEE) — 120 126
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong Fio% — 1,440 12 1,452
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Cheung Wing Ping R 60 — — 60
Frank H. Miu 2%
(appointed on | June 201 1) (R=Z2——F
NA—BEZE) 140 — — 140
Gary Drew Douglas Gary Drew Douglas
(appointed on | June 201 1) (R=—Z2——F
~NA—BEZE) 105 — — 105
Liu Jian (resigned gl (R=2—%F
on | August 2011) NR—BEfT) 80 — — 80
Wen Louis PP S 120 — — 120
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 2 28R 120 — — 120
625 2,860 42 3,527
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 9. EEMEeRITEESHFALT (&)
INDIVIDUALS (Contd)

Directors’ emoluments (Contd) EE=Me (2
Year ended 31 December 2010 BE_Z-ZF+-_RA=1T—HLHFE

Salaries,  Contributions

allowances to defined
and benefits retirement
Directors' in kind scheme
fees  F& 2R ERERAK Total
EXZRE  REYNE AT IR 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT TERT
Executive directors HITES
Chuang Yueheng, Henry R — 120 | 121
King Phillip ERIE — 40 12 432
Wang Lin E# — 240 12 252
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong Fia% = 900 12 912
Independent
non-executive directors BYFYTES
Cheung Wing Ping R 120 — — 120
Liu Jian 2% 120 — — 120
Wen Louis B 120 — — 120
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond £ 2 B 120 — — 120
480 1,680 37 2,197
During the year, Mr. Chuang Yueheng, Henry waived and agreed to waive FA HRBALERZELRAENEME
emoluments of HK$ 1,980,000 (2010: HK$/,320,000); and Mr. Cheung Wing 1,980,000/ ¢ (ZF—F 4 . 1,320,000
Ping waived and agreed to waive emoluments of HK$60,000 (2010: nil). BL) - RREF R EMELRZREM

%60,00087C (ZE—ZF . &) o
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Cont'd)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year included two
(2010: two) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out above.
Details of the remunerations of the remaining three (2010: three) highest paid

individuals, who are not directors, for the year are as follows:

FE TR MR

9. EEMERTEREHAL (B

LEREHAL
AEEFARARRHEALEERSE (Z
—FF -HE)EE NEZFMFER
BREX - FA BRTI=R(ZF—F
FZE)RRFAL (OFES) 2FM

LINNE
2011 2010
—E—-—-F 255
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EFUMNEEYH = 2,025 1,392
Contributions to defined retirement scheme TERRIRGT S 36 36
2,061 1,428

The above three (2010: three), highest paid individuals fell within the following
bands:

ZH(ZE—ZFF: ZF)RRFA
i%ﬁ%ﬂ?%?ﬁli

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 78 7T
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10. TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010:16.5%)

on the Group's estimated assessable profits arising from Hong Kong during the

year.

Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) in respect of operations in the People's Republic
of China (the “PRC") had been provided at the applicable tax rate on the
estimated assessable profits arising from the PRC in 2010. During the year, EIT

has not been provided as the Group did not carry out any operation in the

2011 3 BAIEBRIZERBERA R

10. H1E

SEMBRRMEE

Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE

Fh - REERES B R
FE BB E165%(ZF—FTF

16.5%) st RREBMEH -
HRAREARLRE ([ E]

)RR EE

FIER ((EEMER) B2 —2FRE
Rz T AR At 1 O 43 PR A 2R S e
o AEER - ARELEESEETE

PRC. %% - Bt R RERAEN
2011 2010
—B-—-F %
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FTET
Current tax ENEARE IR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMEH 288 176
EIT of the PRC FESRMAEH — 135
288 31
Deferred taxation EERIR
Origination of temporary differences 0 2 RO — 319
Benefit of tax losses reversed BERIARE M — 2,275
— 2,594
Total tax charge for the year FABIBRS B 288 2,905
Deferred tax recognised in profit or loss B ABEZEERE
2011 2010
—E-—F —T-%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
Types of temporary differences: Tt EmER
Depreciation allowances FERHE — (295)
Fair value adjustments N ERE — 5,344
Tax losses HIEEE = 2,275
Others H A — (4,730)
— 2,594
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10. TAXATION (Cont'd)

10. BB (&)

FE TR MR

Reconciliation of tax expense BB X R
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TERT
Loss before taxation BRILAIE 1B (554,527) (192,694)
Income tax at applicable tax rate of 16.5% #16.5% (ZF—FF :16.5%)

(2010: 16.5%) ZERB R EZEN (91,497) (31,795)
Non-deductible expenses TRIMK X 6,522 7,100
Unrecognised tax losses AERREEE 84,136 25,701
Unrecognised temporary differences AERERILZHE 894 (4,095)
Utilisation of previously BABTARAERLZ

unrecognised tax losses HIAEE 31 (63)
Recognition of previously unrecognised BRBTARERLZ

deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE E — (43)
Recognition of previously unrecognised BRBTRBERZ

deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE — (101)
Reversal of previously recognised BEBADHRLZ

temporary differences gRtER = (7,255)
Effect of different tax rates of a subsidiary —RREM AR L E

operating in other jurisdictions BRI RBETZE = (63)
Effect of share of results of associates EIEHBERRIFECLTE 341 14,015
Others HAth (77) (496)

288 2,905
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Year ended 3| December 2011 £ 2

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Of the Group's loss for the year of HK$554,815,000 (2010: HK$195,599,000),
a loss of HK$549,323,000 (2010: HK$57,815,000) has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year (2010: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company for the year of 201 | of HK$552,298,000
(2010: HK$169,285,000) and the weighted average number of 339,000,106
(2010 (restated): 66,750,928) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

As there was an anti-dilutive effect after adjusting for the effect of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss

per share for the years ended 3| December 201 | and 2010.

The comparative amount of the basic and diluted loss per share has been
adjusted as a result of the share consolidations and rights issue effected during

the year.

11.

12.

13.

2011 5% )EZ%UIB%‘?HEEEE'RT

RS ERR M T

“F——F+t-R=t—HLFE

FREE

REB 7 F RN EIE A554,815,000% T
(ZZE—F4 :195,599,000/% ) * Emh
18 £549,323,0008 T (ZE—ZF4F :

57,815,000/ ) E RN AR A B 5 3k %
BRIE o

B’ E

ARAREFEENRNEERE (=
FE )

BREE

FREREERANBEREAE AERL
—Z——F518552,298,0008 T (=&
—ZFE 1 169,285,000% ) R ENE %

17 ﬂtiﬁ;%‘zm 1 19 £1339,000,106%
(ZZE—ZF (EJl) : 66,750,928/ ) &t

R
.

HRAEFAEEREEARNTEA
AREERS  AUBE-T——%FR
“E-FFE+_A=t-HLFEZE
R EERESRENSRHMAR -

ARFERETRN A6 LK BRE
ARBEEENITL R BRLECRE -

7
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

4. % BER®RE

SEMBRRMEE

The Group AEE
Leasehold Leasehold
land and improve- Furniture
buildings ments and Office Motor
Bg HE fixtures  equipment vehicles Yacht Total
THRET  NEEE  GAREE  BOERE hE id it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Reconciliation of carrying REEHE
amount - year ended -HEZT-%F
31 December 2010 TZAZT-RALFR
At beginning of reporting period REFHN 90,646 33898 10,534 6,613 [1,604 71500 224805
Additions HhE = 15,151 734 6,836 15,652 — 39373
Disposals it & = (1010) (344) (101) (1846) = (3301)
Depreciation i (3,500) (4969) (1930) (4233) (6817) (8412) (29.861)
Impairment loss REEE - - - = — (1173) (L173)
Disposal of interest NG
in subsidiaries 3 (18,086) (2.700) (368) (41 — — (21,195)
Disposal of interest in HERELHE
Cordoba Group Eq (69,060) (37.881) (9,060) (6,79) (18593) (61,915) (203,305)
At end of reporting period RERHEER = 2489 566 2288 — — 5343
Reconciliation of carrying FEEHE
amount - year ended -H2I%--%
31 December 2011 tZR=t-ALEE
At beginning of reporting period RERHN = 2,489 566 2,288 — — 5343
Additions hE — 107 — 612 — — 719
Acquisition of subsidaries WERBAS - - - - 268 - 268
Disposals (& - - - (1,150) - - (1,150
Depreciation ik — (870) (202) (1.447) (64) = (2,583)
At end of reporting period RERHEER - 1,726 364 303 204 - 2,597
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I4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 14. 1% - BERRE (B
The Group (Contd) XEE (&
Leasehold Leasehold
land and improve- Furniture
buildings ments and Office Motor
Bg HE fixtures  equipment vehicles Yacht Total

tHERT  NREE  BARKE  HOERG hE i 4 it
HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK§000
TERL TER TEn TEn TERL TERL TERL

At 31 December 2010 R-E-FF+-A=1-H
Cost AR = 4338 1548 6,472 = = 12,358
Accumulated depreciation and 2 ERAE

impairment loss BR = (1649) (982) (4184) = = (7015)

= 2489 566 2288 = = 5343

At 31 December 201 R2--F1A=t-H
Cost A - 445 1,548 5,03 28 - 11,296
Accumulated depreciation and 2 ERAE

impairment loss bR - (2719) (1,184) (4732) (64) - (8,699)

— [,726 364 303 204 = 2597
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SEMBRRMEE

I5. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. MEB A AER
The Company
ARF
2011 2010
—g--%  -3-%%
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P & TER TET
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - ARG 676,612 676,612
Impairment loss REEE (b) (676,408) (602,338)
204 74,274
Due from subsidiaries i NG (a) 1,356,599 959,122
Impairment loss HEEE (b) (461,151) 3)
895,448 959,119
895,652 1,033,393

Notes: 3T -

(@)  The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed repayment (a) REUWBARZBEAEEALERTES
term. At the end of the reporting period, HK$30,927,000 (2010: HH o NEWMELEEH + 30,927,000/
HK$140,642,000) of the balance due bears interest at effective interest rate of T (=ZE—FE : 140,642,00057T) 7
5% per annum (2010: 5% per annum) and the remaining balance is interest-free. EAREREN RS (ZE—FF | F
The carrying amount of the balance due approximates their fair value. FIE5%):t 8 T &% 8 - B

i REEREQFERAS
(b)  The impairment loss was recognised for interests in certain subsidiaries with an b) HARETHEBATNEBETR oz

aggregate carrying amount (before deducting the impairment loss) of
HK$1,329,264,000 (2010: HK$676,549,000) because these subsidiaries have

deficiency in assets and, accordingly, a portion of the interests is impaired.

BRE BMBASHEAR NRRE
B8 A1) IR E 488 1,329,264,000% T
(ZZF—F4 : 676,549,000 ) K HE
HHERREES -
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I5. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

2011 3 BAIEBRIZERBERA R

SEMBRRMEE

Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE

In the opinion of the directors, a complete list of the particulars of all

subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the table below lists the

principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period which materially affect

the result or assets of the Group.

Name of subsidiaries

Place of

incorporation

Particulars of
issued and paid up

ordinary share capital

15. B A RER (8)

EEZRR ARZEZIMEHELRR
ZHABEREBNITR B TREZT
REFPEEAHAREXEXEESR
BAREZIEMEBRR -

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital

held by the Company  Principal activities

ERITRAR ARARFRERT
WELRER oL il A 3L 4t B EBRAFZFHE REAEEZAEIL FTEXH
(Note) Directly  Indirectly
(P aE) E# &
% %
China Energy Worldwide Hong Kong 10,000 shares of — 60 Investment holding
Investment Limited BA HK$| each REZR
PEERRREE 10,000 fx B
1N EfE 17872 i
China United International ~ Hong Kong 53,000 shares of 100 —  Provision of
Administrative Services BB HK$100 each administrative services
Limited 53,000 & i AT RS
ERBERRBER LA E{E 1008 T2 Bh
Forever Ascent Limited Hong Kong | share of HK$| each — 60  Motor vehicle owning
BXBRAT B 1 IREREE 1 BTz BEAE
Headman Investments Hong Kong | share of HK$ | each — 100 Investment holding
Limited B 1REREE 1 BTz RH REER

BEREBRRF
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I5. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of

incorporation

Particulars of
issued and paid up

ordinary share capital

FE TR MR

15. B A RER (8)

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital

held by the Company

Principal activities

ERTRAR ARERAEERT
WEARERE oL AR AR 2 3t B EERAZHE REAEEZAEILE  FEXH
(Note) Directly  Indirectly
(FI5E) BE B3
% %
High Morale Investments British Virgin Islands | share of US$ | each — 00 Investment holding
Limited RERAEE 1 REREE 1 RT2BRR RERR
I_J/u\TXﬁﬁBE'(
Pear| Decade Limited British Virgin Islands 9,615,386 shares of US$| each — |00 Trading of investments
RERZHES 9,615,386 BB iix BERE
H{E1XTZBH
Sun Willie Financing Limited ~ Hong Kong 75,000,001 shares of HK$ | each — [00  Money lending
MBI B A RAF] BA 75,000,001 B &R A A &
(R )
Synergy City Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$! each — 00  Property Investment
RERLEE 1REREE 1 XT2RR MERE
Willie Resources Cayman Islands 4,951,408,325 shares of 100 —  Investment holding

Incorporated

BAMERERAA

FEHS

HK$0.10 each
4,951 408,325 X & A%
M8 0.10 BT Z ik fp

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in Hong Kong.

Note:

reporting period, or at any time during the year.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the

REEK

TRAEMBRARBIEARTELE -

it : WEBARR2RBEE B FENER
BRMESRTEBES o
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16. BEQATER

The Group The Company
r&H EAH

2011 2010 2011 2010
B —ZT-TF ZB--F "—T-ITF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET THERT FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEMRE - ARAG — — 690,314 690,314
Share of net assets EhEESFE 567,829 583,281 — —
Impairment loss HEER — — (122,485) (107,033)
567,829 583,281 567,829 583,281

Details of the principal associates at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

RERBMEEENTIERZRRFEN

T

Percentage
of nominal
value of issued

share capital

Name of associates Place of Class of held by
incorporation share held the Company Principal activities
s ARBFBERT
BEQRER E A AR 2 3t B B 42 5 BAHEZBEDL TEEK
(note 30)
(Fft5E 30)
%
Bestford Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 2435 Property investment
B gl NERE
Bright Majestic Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
RBELEE gl NERE
Cordoba Homes Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Investment holding
HEFREERAA RERZES gl REEK
Cordoba Homes Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 2435 Money lending
i gl MiE
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16. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Contd)

SEMBRRMEE

16. BHE N RIHER (8)

Percentage
of nominal
value of issued

share capital

Place of Class of held by
Name of associates incorporation share held the Company Principal activities
PR ARARBERT
BENTEH E 7R AR S 3t gyl BAEEZED T FEXRK
(note 30)
(Ft5E 30)
%
Cordoba Homes Management Hong Kong Ordinary Share 24.35 Provision of
Limited BA AR administrative services
NEREERFRDA RETHRS
CW Financing Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 24.35 Money lending
B gl 45
Earn Best Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
RERELES gl NERE
Easy Step Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 2435 Property investment
fRERRAR B gl NERE
Embrace Assets Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
RERELES gl NERE
Good Develop Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
HBERRE e gl MERE
Grace Shine Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
ERREBRAA RERLES gl MERE
Hermitage Thoroughbreds Australia Ordinary Share 24.35 Breeding of animals
Pty Limited N gl BMER
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16. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Contd)

2011 3 BAIEBRIZERBERA R

SEMBRRMEE

Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE

16. BHE L RER (8)

Percentage
of nominal
value of issued

share capital

Place of Class of held by
Name of associates incorporation share held the Company Principal activities
P AARAREERT
BENTEH Ak fH AR S 3 g bl BAEEZED T FERK
(note 30)
(Ff5E 30)
%
Hostbest Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
RBEXEE gl NERE
International Stamps & Hong Kong Ordinary Share 24.35 Motor vehicles owning
Coins Auction Limited B RGN BB
PEBRERNEERAR
Longtop Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
RELFERAA & gL NERE
Perfectday Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property Investment
RERLEE gl MERE
Poly Logic Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
RERTES B NERE
Sharp Light International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
ERERARLA &k gl MERE
Silver Target Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
RERLEE gl MERE
Speedy High Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
ARREARAT REELEE gl NERE
Swiss Ocean Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
EFARADA BB gl NERE
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16. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Contd)

SEMBRRMEE

16. BHE N RIHER (8)

Percentage
of nominal
value of issued

share capital

Place of Class of held by
Name of associates incorporation share held the Company Principal activities
PR ARARBERT
BENTEH E 7R AR S 3t gyl BAEEZED T FEXRK
(note 30)
(Ft5E 30)
%
Trade Well Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
FEREARADT REELES gl NERE
United Goal Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Investment holding
BRREBRAF RERLEE Rl REER
Uprite Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Yacht owning
RERLES gl HAER
Wealth Champion Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
REEXES gl MEHE
Wealth Elegant Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 2435 Property investment
EREBRAA RERLEE gl MERE
Wellhand Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 24.35 Motor vehicles owning
Bk il HEBAE
Willie Carpark (North Point) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
EAES (tA) ARAA B il NERE
Wise Sky Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
RERLES gl MERE
Wiseteam Assets Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Share 24.35 Property investment
RERELES Egilie NERE
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16. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Contd)

All of the above associates operate principally in Hong Kong except Hermitage
Thoroughbreds Pty Limited and Perfectday Investments Limited which operate

principally in Australia.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of

associates as of and for the respective years:

16. BHE L RER (8)

Bk Hermitage Thoroughbreds Pty Limited
K Perfectday Investments Limited= 27
BEMEESN - FRABERRIFER

pru =)

TRENEBEERLE D ANTBKER
BE :

2011 2010
—g—-5  -F-%%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Financial position at end of EHHMEEAN
reporting period AR
Total non-current assets ERBEERRE 2,644,622 1,316,292
Total current assets MEBEERE 221,839 636,225
Total non-current liabilities FRBABRE (45,941) (27,299)
Total current liabilities mBaERRE (488,570) (492,386)
2,331,950 1,432,832
Group’s share of net assets of associates FEEREBHENRAZERERE 567,829 583,281
Operating results for the year FRREXE
Turnover HEH 41,623 20,167
Loss for the year FNER (7,081) (283,590)
Group’s share of results of associates FEBEREBENR CEE (2,068) (84,940)

The accounting policies adopted by the associates are consistent with the

accounting policies adopted by the Group.

B R RRA 2 @3 BE A R B AR
ReHEE X -
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7. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

FE TR MR

17. AIHENKEE

The Group The Company
EN L EAYNG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g--% -T-TF -¥--F -“F-IF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt & TER TERT TER TER
Equity securities, listed in REE RN
Hong Kong, at fair value #x WATET (@) 64,505 — 64,505 —
Club membership, at cost SHEHE  UKAF () 13,920 4,020 12,920 3,020
Unlisted investments, at cost FLETRE - LKA (b) 32,100 22,000 — —
Impairment loss REEE (©) (5,808) — — —
26,292 22,000 — —
104,717 26,020 77,425 3,020
Notes: i
(@)  The Group holds 25.56% (2010: nil) of the ordinary shares capital of Capital VC a) AREREEMEIRAERAF ([HHE
Limited (“Capital VC"), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with those #]) L@kt A25.56% (ZE—FF .
shares listed in Hong Kong. Capital VC is principally engaged in the investment in ) AHEIRRFEHSTMAL -
listed and unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Capital VC is not BRORBE LT FEREREFEN
treated as an associate because, in the opinion of the directors, the Company will REARTENLMRIFLTAF - 93
not participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee REZZRARRATEL2ARKER
company. The fair value of these listed securities is determined based on the BB TS R BRI Jﬁﬁ(éﬁﬁé‘”&z{ﬁﬁ
quoted market price available on the Stock Exchange. & NA] o % ETRE A A TER RS
RATIGREET -
(b)  The directors are of the opinion that as the variability in the range of reasonable ) EBEFRRENELMREREMERL

fair value estimates for the unlisted investments and club membership are
significant and probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, these investments are stated

at cost less any impairment loss.

A ERATERERPEX - BZH
BIR 2 RIRMEER EEES BTG E
ERRFEATE - MZEREAKR
W R EBRER -
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7. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

Included in the unlisted investments as at 3| December 201 | was the Group's
interests in 21% (2010: 21%) of the nominal value of the issued non-voting,
redeemable participating share capital of VMS Private Investment Partners VI
Limited, an equity investee (the “Equity Investee”). The Equity Investee was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is engaged in investment holding. The
Equity Investee is not treated as an associate because the Group did not have the

right to exercise significant influence over the Equity Investee.

An impairment loss of HK$4,008,000 was made on an unlisted investment with
cost of HK$22,000,000 because the investee company has sustained loss during
the year and the directors are of the opinion that the probability to recover fully
the investment cost would be remote. An impairment loss of HK$ 1,800,000 was
also made on an investment in an entity setting up in the PRC with details shown

on note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

8. OTHER INVESTMENTS

2011 5% )EZ%UB%‘?HEEEE'RT

A T MmARMEE

“F——F+t-R=t—HLFE

7. ARLERBEE (&)
i ()

RZB——&F+=-A=+—Hz¥Lm
REBREAEERFHRHEKE R RVMS
Private Investment Partners VI
Limited ([ &% E A A]]) EETEELR
- AEE2ERAEEN21% (ZF
—ZE I 21%) R o HRERAANE
BELHSHMKT  #EREERE
% o R ANEEEE SRR E QAN
BEAXEN  HHREARNTRAKE
YN

EW&Z&E AREABEFRAES

REBHWEIRERANTREERK -
l&tﬁdnm:z%zz,ooo,ooofﬁxm&m
B B R A 5 184,008,000 7T © 71
FIRERPBERAABMEL RERRE
1,800,0007% 70 FBEEREA B |
#MiFE29 °

18. Hitt®kE

The Group
ZN 3L

2011 2010
—g--&  -2-%%
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET

At cost BURE A 5t
At beginning of reporting period R 2 HE — 146,430
Additions 125 5,900 26,639
(Provision) Reversal of impairment loss (BE) BRREER (1,320) 2,476
Disposal of interest in Cordoba Group HEREEEER — (175,545)
At end of reporting period REFBMEHER 4,580 =
Other investments represent artwork (2010: rare precious stone and artwork). HtiREiEitm (CE-FF  RAE

The provision of impairment loss was based on the lower of carrying amount

and recoverable amount of artwork. The recoverable amount was determined

with reference to respective hammer price of the artwork in public auction

during the year.

A R Zlm) °

REBEREEERENR 2 REER

ApEeBELREEFE -

Al e & B

ﬁ%ﬁﬁqﬁm%@%ﬁ?ﬂ?{ﬁ@ﬁ%%?&fg
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SEMBRRMEE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 19. RAFEFAERZHBEE

90

Analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: BATEFABRR HBEE 2D
T
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—EF——fF —T-TF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P &E TR TET
Investments held for trading BFEEERE
Equity securities IR 5
Listed in Hong Kong REE L™ 588,674 603,413
Listed overseas RSN £ 16,417 18,832
Bonds listed overseas RSN T 2 &5 33,513 3,920
@) 638,604 626,165
Investments designated as at fair REABAREER
value upon initial recognition BAFEIRZRE
Unlisted derivative financial FEMITEERMIAE—
instruments — equity linked note PR H 8 R (b)&(c) 1,524 —
Unlisted bonds FLmEH (b)&(c) 4,955 —
Unlisted convertible bonds FEmAIRRES (b)&(d) 66,087 51,677
72,566 51,677
711,170 677,842
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Contd)

Notes:

(@)

The fair values of listed equity securities and listed bonds are based on quoted

market prices in active markets.

The unlisted investments were designated as at fair value upon initial recognition

as they are managed and evaluated on fair value basis.

The fair values of unlisted derivative financial instruments and unlisted bonds are
estimated using the combination of observed transaction prices and independent

pricing services as reported by the financial institution.

The fair values of unlisted convertible bonds are estimated using valuation
technique based on assumptions and estimates including average stock price, risk
free rate, volatility and dividend yield by an independent qualified professional

valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited.

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss exceeded 0% of the Group's total assets. In addition,
the Group’s shareholding in each of the investees did not exceed 20% of the

issued shares of the investees.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with an aggregate amount of HK$711,170,000 (2010:
HK$677,842,000) were pledged to certain financial institutions and brokers to
secure certain margin financing and loan facilities amounted to HK$355,671,000
(2010: HK$317,240,000) granted to the Group which were utilised with the
amount of HK$33,311,000 (2010: nil) at the end of the reporting period.

2011 5% )EZ%UB%‘FHEEEE'R?

RS ERR M T

)

19. BAVEFARBZMBEE (&)

BifaE

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ww%%&m%m“
RIERMHTRM (EE

FETR

BRI LT RARATEEAEE
fh - BB RRRR BRI A
CHER

2 Rt
¥

FEMTERBIARFEETER 2D

TEDEERATBEERSERRER
SREER2R 2B EEREETR
&t e

FEMARRRE 2 D FETLRBHGE
532 BBUEXRMGEMESERFGLE

ARMRKEBRR kA (BREMGD
¥i’;JHxE CERBAE OKERKS
R)fEHAE

RERBEER  ARERATETA
BaBEAENERANSELEE
210% WAk - REBPHFSHIRES
ZIREY EBAZWIRE L EBITRG
220% °

RERBLEER  FEEAKLEE
711,170,000 T (= & — F F :
677,842,000/ ) K)E A FEE AEa
CHBEEERTETeRBERES
BEUNRMEAEEEREE AR
355,671,0008 T (= & — T F :
317,240000%7‘5)9@%?1 HERER
FE RERBLER BHHRES
33,311 000/%713(77 —FF &)
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20. LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to repayment schedules.

The balance comprises loans receivable from:

e MR

20. B ER

BFERAZ

VN

REERERREER

BRERUT FH&IEmi

The Group
AEH
2011 2010
—E——f —T—FfF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P &t TER TET
Third parties F=F (a) 103,277 202,280
Allowance for doubtful debts RIRB A (b) (20,271) —
83,006 202,280
Less: Balances due within one year included & : —F RZIEZ] A
in current assets MENEE 2 KR (79,955) (198,280)
Non-current portion SEREE A 3,051 4,000
Short term loans, net of provision REES - MRBE 78,724 47,133
Instalment loans D HER 4,282 155,147
83,006 202,280
Notes: k=3
(@) At the end of the reporting period, loans receivable (i) carry at variable and fixed (a) REHNPEEAR  ERERDRZEBHH
interest rates and have effective interest rates ranging from around 6% per annum ERETNEFE  ERFNENTH
to 24% per annum (2010: from around 2.5% per annum to 2% per annum); (ii) BEZR24E (ZE—FF : FFENTH

include balances of HK$4,168,000 (2010: nil) which are past due within three
months; (iii) include balances of HK$99,109,000 (2010: HK$202,280,000) which
are within the respective maturity dates and (iv) include an aggregate amount of
HK$ 11,572,000 (2010: nil) which is secured by personal guarantees.

265BZ12[) : (VBEBH=EANUA
H) 4 #24,168,0008 T (Z E—FF :
) (NBERSEEEHARNE

£ 99,109,000 T

202,280,000 ;) + R (iv)
11,572,000 T (=&

AFERIEER -

R(ZE-FF
}ED/\
—FF  F)IE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B FE R FTMIEE

20. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Contd)
Notes: (Cont'd)

(b) The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE

20. BRER (40)
MisE - ()

(b) REREEZHOT :

2011 2010
o i —F-2F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
At beginning of reporting period R ERAH = 63,225
Increase in allowance BEASIE N 20,271
Reversal of allowance By = (15,601)
Amount written off ikl — (8,517)
Disposal of interest in Cordoba Group HERBER 2 #xn = (39,107)
At end of reporting period REBHEER 20,271
The directors assessed the collectability of loans receivable at the end of the EENERPLEEALL2Z/RAZB

reporting period individually with reference to borrowers' past collection history
and current creditworthiness. An amount of HK$20,271,000 in respect of two
borrowers (2010: nil) were determined to be impaired as a result of the
assessment. In the directors’ opinion, there was no indication of deterioration in
the collectability of the remaining amount of HK$83,006,000 (2010:
HK$202,280,000) and thus no additional allowance was considered necessary.

No loans receivable was past due but not impaired for the years ended 31
December 201 | and 2010. Loans receivable that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of borrowers for whom there was no history

of default.

EERLHRE au%%% (EEIREEY T
ERZAKERE - FEEREEAR
ML & 3 A 2 B 30 20,271,000 7T
(ZF—FF: F)ELRE - EFR
%+ T #4#883,006,0008 T (ZF—
F4F : 202,280,000 7T) Z AT ER R
WEBLHR - R BRERHEEIN
B

BE-_T——§R=-T—TF+=-A=
+—H¢¢F'ﬂﬁ5@%ﬁ$ﬁﬁm
BRER - BRBHNERBE . EUE
FOERADEAE R -
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21. OTHER RECEIVABLES

SEMBRRMEE

21. BRI

The Group The Company
A&H ENN

2011 2010 2011 2010
—®--% -T-TF -®--F -T-IF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt & TER TET TER TET
Due from associates JRE L Bt & N B R0R (a) 10,357 159,784 — 150,134
Deposits and prepayments BEEREMK 313 19,239 23 9,915
Other receivables Hofth & e 3R0B (b) 5,437 864 — —
16,107 179,887 23 160,049

All above assets are neither past due nor impaired with no history of default.

In the directors’ opinion, these balances are fully recoverable.

Notes:

(@) Asat 3| December 2010, the amount due included a loan of HK$150,000,000
due from an associate which was unsecured, bearing interest at prime rate and
repayable within one year. The loan was fully repaid during the year. As at 31
December 201 [, the amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
repayment term. The carrying amount of the amount due approximates its fair

value.

(b) Included in other receivables was an amount of HK$2,892,000 due from a related
company of the Group's non-controlling interests. The directors assessed the
collectability of the amount due at the end of the reporting period with reference
to the debtor's current creditworthiness. An allowance for doubtful debts of

HK$2,892,000 (2010: nil) was recognised during the year.

TRBEERARAM T ERE  BREYL
BER HEFERAR UBEREZE

‘o

B =

(a) R-E—ZEE+-PA=1+—-H %28
45 FE U B = /A 7] B 50150,000,0007%
T ZERAREERE  BREEM X
B YAR—ERNER - ZEFRER
B -R-_F——%F+-A=+—H
IMFEREERE 25 BYEETE
BHE - HHFENERELENFER
g o

(b) A e IR B IE R U AN 5 (B SRR Ak

W B 72892000;%7co§$%
ZEBANBRAEETHERBEE

MBI RERE A E o %ﬂqﬁé@w

% 1% 2,892,000% T (= f$
) o

7nv
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23.

Year ended 3| December 2011 £ Z

RS ERR M T

“F——F+t-R=t—HLFE

22. BeRBEEE

The Group The Company
r&E NN

2011 2010 2011 2010

—E-—-§ —ZT-TF CZB--HF _—T-FTF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET THERT TET

Cash and bank balance & RRITEER 335,623 203,413 221,414 176,101

Call deposits with maturities =& AR EHE

less than three months AR — 114,065 — —
335,623 317,478 221,414 176,101
Certain cash at bank earns interest at floating rate based on daily bank deposit ERBEINE TReREARITERM

rates. The carrying amount of cash and bank balance approximates to their fair

value.

OTHER PAYABLES

R EMFERBAE - RERBITE
BREEEATEEE

23. HitEMA A

The Group The Company
ARE AR

2011 2010 2011 2010
—2—-5 —"T-TF ZB--Ff _"T-IZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT TET
Due to subsidiaries (note) FET BB A B (KisE) — — — 990
Other payables Eiﬁﬂﬁ%TﬁrAI 3,016 3467 1,286 1,155
3,016 3467 1,286 2,145

Note: The amount due was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed payment term. iz : ZRBAEER 2LEEEEER

The amount was fully repaid during the year. HIR - ZREERAFEZHER

95



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2011 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #%r& B SRz M EE

Year ended 3| December 201 | HEZE——F+-A=1+—HIEFE

24. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 24. FHEER
The Group
ZN 3L
2011 2010
—g——fF —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Secured bank loans ARN—FAEEDN
repayable within one year ﬁﬁ#ﬁfﬁ X 33311 —
As at 31 December 201 [, the bank loans carrying fixed interest rates about R_E——F+-_R=1+—H RTE
|% per annum (2010: nil) were denominated in the US dollars and were FRETFMNEME (CT—FF &)
secured by the Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss with AR UETHE  TAAKREREE
carrying value of HK$72,573,000. The bank loans are repayable within one year /72,573,000 TR L FEG ABR
with a repayment on demand clause. MBS B EEERA - ZRITEFRER
FAEE  UIHERARERBER
25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. ELEBHIE
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from AERANEEHEEERE
The Group
ZN 3L
2011 2010
—E——f —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Deductible temporary differences AHREREERE 396 —
Tax losses TIEEE 1,407,878 898,153
At end of reporting period REEHMEERB 1,408,274 898,153
Neither the tax losses nor the deductible temporary differences expire under RERTBOE - HIBERE R A MK TR
current tax legislation. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect HEEHIEIE - ARETKE LKA
of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be AE M) 2R 2R FE AR B M 4 86 4 AT A A9
available against which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom. M ARt 2B BRELEN

HEE °
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. A&
The Group and the Company AEERKXAR
Number of
Notes ordinary shares Nominal value
Pt & EEREE HfE
HK$’000
TER
Authorised ordinary shares: FELER
At | January 2010 and R-ZZE—ZTF—-—H—H-
31 December 2010 —T-FFt+-A=t—H
and | January 2011, k—Z——%—H—B8"
of HK$0.10 each BREE0.10/ET 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
First Capital Reorganisation BRRAEA (a) (8,000,000,000) (980,000)
Increase during the year FREM (b) 8,000,000,000 80,000
Second Capital Reorganisation FZRBARER (d) (8,000,000,000) (80,000)
At 31 December 2011, R-B-—-%+-A=1+-H"

of HK $0.01 each BREE001ET 2,000,000,000 20,000
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26.

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

26. R& (&)

SEMBRRMEE

The Group and the Company AEERAAT
Number of
ordinary
shares Share Share
in issue capital premium Total
ERT
EEREBE CRTRH - RORE a5t
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
3 TER TiER TER
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAREEER
At | January 2010, of R-_ET-FTF5—-H—-AH"

HK$0.10 each BREE 0108 597,447,383 59,745 2,986,963 3,046,708
Placing of shares, net of expenses ~ ERERR{) - EMBRHX 823,162,447 82,316 122,982 205,298
Issue of shares under share REBREE

option scheme, net of IR

expenses EHMBRAX 59,740,000 5974 17901 23,875
At 31 December 2010 and | R-E-—FF

January 201 1, of HK$0.10 each +-A=+-HEK

—B——%-f-R"
BREE 0108 1,480,349,830 148,035 3,127,846 3,275,88I
First Capital Reorganisation, BRRASEA -

net of expenses EMBRRY (a) (1,184,279,864) (145,074) 145,014 (60)
Issue of shares under rights issue,  RIERREITIRD

net of expenses mEIEET (b) 2,368,559,728 23,685 262,815 286,500
Repurchase of shares AEl ) (d) @) — — —
Second Capital Reorganisation, FZRBRAEAR -

net of expenses mE T (d) (2,179,074,948) (21,791) 21,216 (575)
Placing of shares, RERR -

net of expenses EHBRFX () & (e) 187,426,671 1,874 57,937 59,811
Issue of shares under REBRETE

share option TR

scheme, net of expenses EHMRFX 28 54,476,873 545 10,172 10,717
At 3| December 2011, R=B—-—%

of HK$0.01 each +=ZA=t—-H"

SREE0.01ER 727,458,288 7,274 3,625,000 3,632,274
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

Notes:

(@)

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 16 March 2011, a
special resolution in respect of the share consolidation and the capital reduction
of the Company (the “First Capital Reorganisation”) was approved by the
shareholders. The First Capital Reorganisation became effective on |7 March 201 |
and its effects were as follows:

(i)  Under the capital reduction, the authorised share capital of the Company
was reduced from HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each to HK$20,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 reduced
shares of HK$0.002 each and the reduction was effected by way of
cancellation of HK$0.098 of the paid up capital on each issued share of
HK$0.10 and reduction of the nominal value of each issued or unissued
share of the Company from HK$0.10 per share to HK$0.002 per reduced
share.

(i) Under the share consolidation, every 5 reduced issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.002 each was consolidated into | adjusted issued and unissued
share of HK$0.01 each.

(i) As a result of the First Capital Reorganisation, the authorised share capital

of the Company was reduced from HK$1,000,000,000 to HK$20,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 adjusted shares of HK$0.0l each while the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced from HK$148,034,983 to
HK$2,960,699.66 divided into 296,069,966 adjusted shares, giving rise to a
total credit of HK$145,074,283.34 which, net of expenses of HK$60,000,
was credited to the share premium account of the Company.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company on 30 May 201 | (the “EGM"), the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares
to HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an
additional 8,000,000,000 new shares of HK$0.0| each.

At the EGM, the ordinary resolution approving the rights issue was also duly
passed. 2,368,559,728 rights shares on the basis of eight rights shares for every
share held at a price of HK$0.125 per rights share were issued and allotted to
successful applicants in June 201 |.

On 10 June 2011, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of 59,213,993
ordinary shares of HK$0.0| each for cash to an independent investor. Mr. Andrew
Liu, at a price of HK$0.20 per share under the general mandate granted to the
directors of the Company at the annual general meeting held on 18 May 201 |
(the “AGM”) with the purpose to raise additional funding for the Company to
strengthen its capital base. The net proceeds were used for the Group's general
working capital. The closing market price of the Company's share as at the issue
date was HK$0.21.

26. B
BiaE
(a)

2011 3 BAIEBRIZERBERA R

SEMBRRMEE

(%)

RZB——FZ AT RARTZARA
BREFRIAS  ARAAREBRNE KR
HERBRA (BRI EA]) 2 R RS
RERFHAE - EARFBAR T~
—F=ATCHER FENT

(i) RIBHREA - KAQEEERA
g1 1,000,000,000% 7T ( 5 A&
10,000,000,0007% % f% & f£0.10
B ICRIRR) HIEL £20,000,000/%
7T (5 /410,000,000,0008% SRR E
0.002B T EHIR R ") » 75
A AEEREEI0E TS %
IR 1% 2 B R B AR E 50,0987 T
RERDAIRAREBETHF
BIROEERSRRH0.107E
TCHIR 2= B R A ER A 20,0027
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0.0027% To A A8 B B 897 R R %
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TCEIR £20,000,0008 7T © 9 A
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

C)

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 22 December
2011, a special resolution in respect of the share consolidation and the capital
reduction of the Company (“the Second Capital Reorganisation”) was approved
by the shareholders. The Second Capital Reorganisation became effective on 23
December 201 and its effects were as follows:

0

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

Prior to the Second Capital Reorganisation becoming effective, the
Company purchased 2 ordinary shares of HK$0.0l each from the stock
market in October 201 | pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted to
the directors of the Company at the AGM with the purpose of rounding
down the then 2,723,843,687 issued shares to 2,723,843,685 issued shares
so as to facilitate the Second Capital Reorganisation.

Under the capital reduction, the authorised share capital of the Company
was reduced from HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each to HK$20,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 reduced
shares of HK$0.002 each and the reduction was effected by way of
cancellation of HK$0.008 of the paid up capital on each issued share of
HK$0.01 and reduction of the nominal value of each issued or unissued
share of the Company from HK$0.01 per share to HK$0.002 per reduced
share.

Under the share consolidation, every 5 reduced issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.002 each was consolidated into | adjusted issued and unissued
share of HK$0.01 each.

As a result of the Second Capital Reorganisation, the authorised share
capital of the Company was reduced from HK$100,000,000 to
HK$20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 adjusted shares of HK$0.01
each while the issued share capital of the Company was reduced from
HK$27,238,436.85 to HK$5,447,687.37 divided into 544,768,737 adjusted
shares, giving rise to a total credit of HK$21,790,749.48 which, net of
expenses of HK$575,000, was credited to the share premium account of
the Company.

In December 201 |, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of 128,212,678
ordinary shares of HK$0.0| each for cash to an independent investor, Freeman
Financial Corporation Limited (“Freeman”), at a price of HK$0.375 per share
pursuant to the specific mandate granted by shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 22 December 201 |.

All new shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all respects with the

then existing shares.

SEMBRRMEE

26. R& (&)

izt (&)

RZBE——F+ZAZFZHBITZAK
NARRFIAE  BERABKRNAE
HRBIRBEA ([FE AR AEAR]) 2
FISRERERRALE - F - RRAEA
RIE——E+-A-+=B4% " ¥
2mT

(d)

(e)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv

ARSETE_LNRASEH &K
NAERE ZRBAEHER
R-E—E+ARBRRRE
FRERTFARAZEZNELE
B L2 SR E(E0.01
BILTHLTAER  HEK
2,723,843,6878 B ZT R0 K1 &
%£2,723,843,685 B B 1T D ©

REBEIRRA » ARREERAE
B 100,000,000 T ( 9 A
10,000,000,0008% & A% & {£0.01
BRI (D) IR £20,000,000/%
7t (5 /410,000,000,0008 SRR E
B0.0028 T EHIRER) * A
NAEEEREEC.BITHE %
IR AD 2 BUR R AN 3 850.00878 7T
REARRSERTEIRETR
PEERSRRH0.0178 TAl
EEREHRR70.002E T °

BREBRGAN  SoREREE
0.0027& TR B B 817 R R %
IB A 6 A —REE0.01B T
MEABE BT RAETRG o

BREE-RBRAEMR  ARRE
E MR 7K 1 100,000,000 7T Al I
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2,000,000,000/% FA% A {E0.017
TREAZRNG - MARRE %
TR §127,238,436.8578 7T 5l
% 5447687378 T © D A
544,768,737 L ALK n + BT
B A BR 45 %8 21,790,749.487%
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2011 5% )ﬂ%ﬂl@‘?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ?

RS ERR M T

“F——F+t-R=t—HLFE

27. RESERVES 27. it
The Company ERAF
Share  Share option Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BRHRE BREEE RHER st
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Pt & TER TER TER TER
(Note a)
(Kizta)
At | January 2010 R_Z-TF—-A—H 2,986,963 —  (1264367) 1,722,596
Placing of shares, net of expenses ER &Rk @ EMBRAX 122,982 — — 122,982
Recognition of equity-settled TR E 2 R
share-based payments (NE:S — 1,514 — [,514
Issue of shares under share option 1B#& ¥R HERT 813 1T
scheme, net of expenses R - EHRAX 17,901 (1,514) — 16,387
Loss for the year FNEE = — (57815) (57,815)
At 31 December 2010 and RN_ZE—TF+_HA
| January 201 | =F+—HERZE——%
—A—H 3,127,846 —  (1,322,182) 1,805,664
First Capital Reorganisation, BRRAEH -
net of expenses EMRREX 26(a) 145,014 — — 145,014
Issue of share under rights BB ETRG -
issue, net of expenses RENEEET 26(b) 262,815 — — 262,815
Second Capital Reorganisation, %8 ZXRANEA -
net of expenses BEMRAE 26(d) 21,216 — — 21,216
Placing of shares, RLERH
net of expenses EMBREX 26(c)&(e) 57,937 — — 57,937
Recognition of equity-settled BRRELE 2
share-based payments R 5K 28 — 530 — 530
Issue of shares under share BEBRE 2
option scheme, net of BT
expenses BRI X 28 10,172 (530) — 9,642
Loss for the year FAEE — — (549,323) (549,323)
At 31 December 201 | R-F-——-%
+=ZA=1+—H 3,625,000 —  (1,871,505) 1,753,495
Notes iz -
9 o tr s o s i wr oI SOy nganzaRsEARA
%488{%%%%?
O e e e S e ey sumane saTsauass
}Jﬁ?ﬁ WE %ﬁ/\
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the group reorganisation during 2002, a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) of the Company was approved on 20 November 2002 by the
shareholders of the Company and became effective on 3 January 2003. The
Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years. The board of directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries and any other persons including consultants,
advisors, agents, customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives to the
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its

shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and other share option schemes of the
Company is not permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time, without prior approval from the Company's
shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any |2 months period is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time, without prior
approval from the Company's shareholders. Options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company or any
of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
in issue and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be

subject to prior approval by the Company’s shareholders.

An amount of HK$ 1 is payable on the grant of an option. Options may be
exercised no later than ten years from the date of grant of the share option.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not
be less than the highest of the closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant, the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and the nominal value of the shares

on the date of grant.

&
IAAY

B IR R M

28. BRETE

BER-ZST-_FETZEEER K
ARARRER-_TE-_F+—A=+H
BOE— TR RERT 2 ([512l]) - YW=
ZE-F—A=-HAH - FERTER
—EAX cARAEZEUREERE
TEEKEES (BEADAREME DA
ZEZ)REMEMAL (BEER &
AN RBABP - HEFS)  UR
BAREIRND - SHEEEHBLEER
REALRAREROEBEMELE N

REEAARRRFLRIE - BEZGE
R BE A At B AR R 5T B4R (B 1
AIEZBREMS R 2 RHBETE
BBADAFREETRM230% - B
REM+—EABERTFEREAZE
RiER S R 2 RIDEE NERABERAR
THEEBITRN21% ° HRFAAFE
ERRIBUFHTESTAHESEZ
ERBEA LT 2BREMS R 2KRHE
BHRARARSEITRAZ01% B4
{E{E 385,000,000/ 7T * B MALAR
ARRIE L o

ERBEREAMNIET - BERET AR
BRI REE T FRITE - TEER
AARERETE  ATERARARND
REHAHZKTHE  RHOREER L
AHmMAEERA 2 FRmERRD
REERB EE=EF28BE -
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd) 28. EBRESHE (B
(a) Movement in share options: (a) BREZE
The weighted average
share price
of the Company
ADAH
nEYERE
The closing
price of the
Company's shares
quoted on the
Stock Exchange Immediately
Qutstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding at immediately before the
Name of category at | January during during 31 December before the Date of date of
of participant Date of grant Exercise price pull the year the year W date of grant exercise exercise
R-g--% R-R--F RERHASH
-A-H T2A=1- AOFRHE REAE
SRERNER RuR% iR BEGE  EAERE  FAEAE BEGE BRANUTE frieRs A&
HK$ HK§ HKS HKS
£ £ £ £
Year ended 3| December 2011~ BE=F--%
tZA=t-8
LEE
Employees in aggregate 23 December 2011 0.187 - 25,000,000 (25,000,000 - 0.180 0.187 0.186
et 2
s
Other in aggregate 13 December 2011 0.187 — 19476873 (29476873 ) — 0.180 0.187 0.186
L4 By o
TZA=1=A
- 54476873 (54476873 -
Weighted average exercise price  JIETIIT(ER = 0.187 0.187 =
Year ended 3| December /0 HE-F-3%
TZR=T-ALFE
Employees in aggregate 2 March 2010 0375 - 54300000 (54300000) = 0360 0375 0408
RS i 3l
Other in agaregate 2 March 2010 0375 - 5440000 (5440000) - 0360 0375 0408
B4 Ry “3-%42-H
- 59,740,000 (39,740000) -
Weighted average exercise price M7 = 0375 0375 =
The options granted during the year of 201 | and 2010 did not have any RIZ——FR-_Z-TERENER
specified vesting period. BYESATHEBS
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

(b) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of share options granted under the share option scheme at
the date of grant is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing

model with the following inputs:

FE TR MR

28. BRESE (B

(b)

RBBHE 2 D FERERR

BEBRE SR L 2 BRERE
HEBOATERAR R -8
T EREA RN TEAZRE
E -

Date of grant

el =k
2 March 23 December
2010 2011
—FFF —F—F

=A=-H +=-—A=-+=H

Fair value at the date of grant R H A B AFE

Volume weighted average R B BHR 5 & g
stock price at the date of grant FHAKRE

Exercise price 1T (E

Expected volatility T8 K 18

Risk free rate o B i

HK$0.02534 %7  HK$0.00973 /& It

HK$0.356 /& 7T HK$0.186 & T

HK$0.375 87T HK$0.187 /87T
87.71% 52.59%
0.06% 0.022%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company over the expected option period. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value of the share

options granted.

The fair value of the goods and services received from person other than
employees cannot be estimated reliably. As a result, the fair value is
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the date

the person other than employees renders the services.

T8 R A P A LB T 8 2
AATAENRERETE -
BABRZ2DAEREYVERE
EIRIE ATHE -

TR B AT @ MR 2

NPETBEAERGT - RFEDR
FIRBATARZIFER ALIRH
REEHz RVEFTE
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 29 June 201 |, the Group acquired a 60% equity interest in China Energy
Worldwide Investment Limited (“China Energy”) and its subsidiary, Forever
Ascent Limited (collectively referred to as “China Energy Group”) at an
aggregate consideration of HK$!| and granted a loan facility of HK$65,000,000
to China Energy with the intention to develop the market of liquified natural
gas ("LNG") motor vehicle and LNG related business in the PRC through
setting up two entities named below in the PRC. China Energy had committed
to inject capital of RMB16,600,000 and RMB37,500,000 to these two entities
named “ BOTER FTEEIRBEMAEBR AR "(“EBHERERTE ") and
CEEFRRAARMENAERLDA " (“EBTHERAR"), respectively,
which represented 14.82% and 75% equity interest in these entities
respectively. Details of China Energy Group are set out in note |5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

In July 2011, the Group injected the paid-up capital of RMB8,394,000
(equivalent to HK$10,100,000) for the first phrase of capital injection in /&
¥R E A TE , which will be engaged in the manufacturing of LNG-driven
heavy-duty trucks and specialised vehicles. The cost of the investment was
classified under available-for-sale financial assets. Because of the delay in the
construction work of the manufacturing factory in Huainan and uncertainties
involved in the operation of JER TR E A TE , the Group decided not
to inject the second or final installment of RMB8,206,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$10,126,000). The Group is looking into re-negotiation with
the other investment partners and other alternatives. Since the construction
work of the factory is pending and the re-negotiation is on-going, based on the
existing facts and circumstances, the directors consider a provision of
impairment loss of HK$ 1,800,000 should be made.

2011 3 BAIEBRIZERBERA R

SEMBRRMEE

29. WEBMIB A E

RZZ——F AZTNH  XEEK
BHELRERREERAR ([HER
B REMBAREXKERDR (KB
[hEgREE])60%MKE  BRER
7 7T K 7] 7P 2 A JR X 165,000,000/ 7T
MEREE  RERAERERITXM
AMRCEREFEFERRCRARA
BB R REMSARRIERARBEE
B mERRE AR TERTER
ERAEERAR (DEMAMERERA
B)REBFERARAZFBERD
Al (DERFRERAR]) MREED R
A A R ¥ 16,600,000 & A R %
37,500,0007T * DRIEERZELE
14.82% R 75%MHE - HERREBEHIE
R A M BRERMEI5 -

RZE——F+t A AEERBRYERF
ARERRRABMHNEREEREA
BHoCEERTERERAEIAE
—HEAR BRIBBRERAARE
8,394,0007T (18& 710,100,000 L) °
REKASERUBEENBEE - i
PO R 55 AR Bk T A2 FE R AN b T
RERAECEMPITHAPREZ A%
ERENIAE-BARANTTARE
8,206,0007T (18 & B 4 10,126,000/
) c AEBBREES KA MBEBH
BEkEMERRE ARBERERT
BATHEBEEERET  BERATE
ERIBER - EFRRMEIEL1,800,000%
TLZRERERE -
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

In light of the delay as mentioned above, the Group has suspended the
injection of RMB37,500,000 representing 75% of the registered capital of Jf F§
FEERPAR , a company intended for the construction and operation of LNG
refuelling stations in Huainan in the PRC. As none of the partners had injected
any capital, the directors see no obligation in the funding of the LNG refueling
stations and will deal with the shareholdings of the investee company if and
when the Group decides to proceed. Therefore, no capital injection of
RMB37,500,000 (equivalent to HK$46,275,000) was considered payable as of
the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the capital commitment of the Group was
RMB45,706,000 (equivalent to HK$56,401,000) (2010: nil).

At the end of the reporting period, a secured loan of HK$13,650,000 (20/0:
nil) had been drawn down under the HK$65,000,000 (2010: nil) loan facility by
China Energy.

SEMBRRMEE

29. WIBHEBRR (&)

ERERTER  AEBEEFEIEAR
37,500,000 (HEE RN ERTEEARAR
(—RERPEEEREREERERA
RAMRIE A E) FMELRTS%) « AR
MEEHIANCMNES EFARLE
EERRILRARMRUEREHES - I
ERAEEATHEEHEREDANR
BBl RERBLER  UEIFE
AR #37,500,0007T (18 & 746,275,000
BT BIEESA

RERYMLER  AEBNERERER
AR #45,706,0007T (15 E 156,401,000
BL) (CE—ZFF)-

REFBLEER  PERERERE
65,000,000 T (ZE—FF . ) ER
EE1REN13,650,0008 T (ZF—FF :
m)EERER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

29.

In 2010, the Group acquired the entire equity interests in the following

2011 3 BAIEBRIZERBERA R
2
e MR R A

Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE

WEEH B 2R (2)

R-F-—FF AEEUETUATLRA

companies: H) 2 ERARE
Name of Place of Cash
Acquisition date acquired companies incorporation Principal activities consideration
KEBEH e PN ok B B 3 it B TEXK RERE
HK$°000
TER
4 June 2010 International Stamps Hong Kong Motor vehicles owning 1,500
—T-TF & Coins Auction Limited BB BEAE
~AMA PEBEEEREER A
28 June 2010 Sunny Soar Investments Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Property investment and 52,000
—E-TF (with its subsidiaries, Wise Sky Ltd., RBREES investment holding

SNAZT/\B Freeman Investment Holdings Limited,
Global Day Limited, Sharp Castle

Limited and Victory Good Limited)
FARREBRDA

CEREME AT

Wise Sky Ltd.

RERERBRBERAR

zBERAE

NEERAFARHEAERAF)

MERE RIRE R
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Sunny Soar Investments Limited (“Sunny Soar”) was acquired so as to further
expand the Group's property portfolio in quality commercial premises which
would enhance a stable source of rental income and intensify the property

portfolio of the Group.

International Stamps & Coins Auction Limited was acquired with the aim to

acquire the motor vehicle which would be used for business purposes.

The following summarises the consideration paid and the amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as the amount of

non-controlling interests recognised, at the date of acquisition:

SEMBRRMEE

29. WIBHEBRR (&)

ARREERAA([A]) HAKER
E-SRRAEMBBRERXFHERE
MYEEEmMERE ZBEEMERRT
HEWARE  TeRAKRENDE
A e

PEBEREMEARAADARGE
BRREMBETEMWRE -

TREGEKE B HABET RAEER
FIAEREND MR ERSERATHER
FFEREROHR -

2011 2010

—E-—F —T-FF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THER TET

Recognised amounts identifiable assets P W8 v 8 B B R TR
acquired and liabilities assumed: SEENCRIANE

Investment properties REWME — 51,000
Property, plant and equipment Mm% BB RRE 268 1,363
Other receivables H it fE Y IR — 891
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeF | —
Other payables L fty & B0R (895) (490)
Deferred tax liabilities ELHERE — (900)
Total identifiable net assets THBEEFELR (626) 51,864
Non-controlling interests R ER 250 —
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEENEE 376 1,636
Total consideration HAE = 53,500
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

2011 3 BAIEBRIZERBERA R

SEMBRRMEE

29. WEEMBATE (&)

2011 2010
—B——F —TEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET

An analysis of net cash inflow (outflow) WHBZBEERA (Rl) FE

on acquisition is as follow: a1 N

Cash and cash equivalents HekReFE [ —
Consideration paid BERHKE — (53,500)
| (53,500)

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to the synergies and
economies of scale expected to arise from the business combinations. It is not
expected that any element of the goodwill recognised will be deductible for

income tax purposes.

In 2011, the acquired business has no revenue and a loss of HK$6,292,000
contributable to the results of the Group since acquisition. In 2010, the
subsidiaries made no significant contribution to the revenue and results of the

Group after acquisition.

In 2011, the acquired business has no revenue and a loss of HK$6,879,000
contributable to the result of the Group if the above acquisition had been
taken place at the beginning of the year. In 2010, the revenue and results of
these subsidiaries are also insignificant if the above acquisition had been taken

place at the beginning of 2010.

Due to the delay in the construction work of and further capital injection in Y
ML RERTE and EBHEER AR as disclosed above, the Group
recognised an impairment of goodwill of HK$376,000 (2010: nil) during the

year.

KRELNAERBERRBEAHELN
R kR - BEAERANE
B ELM A MNBRASHOKD o

RZT——F FKEEBY &K -
MEBEKENREASEEESRER
6,292,000 7T - RZT—ZF - fIBLD
AIRKBEEASENKEREETE
EpN=T1

RZT——F  FMREEBLEKE -
e EmEE B REMETT - AIHAE
BB TR E5186,879,0008 T © i L
MRER - —SFEMET  ZEWE
ARNBEREENR-_T-—SFESTE
K o

MENFHE  AREEMERERNA
BREMTPHEARRNERIRRE—
TRHEMTER  AEERFARRADE
H1B376,0008 T (ZE—ZF . &) -
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30. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

31

In December 2010, Cordoba, an associate of the Company, entered into a
subscription agreement with a third party, Hennabun Capital Group Limited
("Hennabun”), pursuant to which Cordoba agreed to issue and Hennabun
agreed to subscribe 400,000,000 ordinary shares of Cordoba with a par value
of HK$0.10 each for a consideration of HK$240,000,000. The consideration
was satisfied by 40,000,000 new shares of Hennabun with a par value of
US$0.10 each. The disposal was completed on 29 December 2010 and
accordingly, the Company’s 49.38% equity interest in Cordoba Group was
diluted to 40.71% of the enlarged issued share capital of Cordoba as at the
date of completion resulting in a loss of HK$18,971,000.

During the year, Cordoba, entered into certain subscription agreements
pursuant to which Cordoba issued certain new shares to various investors,
which constitute a deemed disposal of the Company’'s equity interest in
Cordoba. These deemed disposals were completed during the year and,
accordingly, the Company’'s 40.71% equity interest in Cordoba Group was
diluted to 24.35% of the enlarged issued share capital of Cordoba as at 3|
December 201 |, and there was a loss of HK$ 13,236,000 arising therefrom.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has provided for its eligible employees a defined contribution
retirement scheme under Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme™). The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administrated fund managed by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and each of the employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation, which are subject
to a cap of HK$1,000.

During the year, the amount of employer's contributions made by the Group
to the defined contribution plans was approximately HK$276,000 (2010:
HK$315,000).

SEMBRRMEE

30. RIFLEREDTRER

31.

RZZT—ZF+=A AARHEAH
=85 = HHennabun Capital Group
Limited ([Hennabun]) ;] . R & -
& 7 E % 17 M Hennabund E R B
400,000,000/ &R E(E0.10/% A iz
L@k - KB 7%240,000,000% 7T - LA
40,000,0008% & & ® & 0.10% T /Y
Hennabun#T iR ff - HER T —ZF
TZAZTABRREK - R BEHAR
REMMFREEERIERH49.38% 88
ERELBEREETREZ40.71% &
18,971,000/ 7T Z B 18

AEERN REITUETRERZ W
ZERBERTETHR  BREEL
ERRBMBRRENRE - ZFHIE
HERAFERNTHK - ARAMFER
EEECRERMBAI071%EFE-T
——F+-_A=t+-—BARBELERDE
TRAZ22435% AME LB B
13,236,000/ 7T °

RRETE

AEEREAEREE L2 AR T
AEEEE ((REEE]) MERERK
HREE - RERHBIANBERLSE
BENH  FRRBUREABYE
MES - RERESTE  Z&ER
BEBARRBESHEERATNES
TRBMAB% A % &t 845K - HE2A1,000
BLRER -

R AEERTEREETGEMEREE
MR BEL A276,0008 T (ZE—F
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2011 5% )EZ%UIB%‘?HEEFE'RT

RS ERR M T

Year ended 3| December 2011 £ 2

32. BEALRS

“F——F+t-R=t—HLFE

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the BREeMBERREMEDHERES
following related party transactions were entered into by the Group during o REERFRETZHEALRS
the year: N
(a) Transactions with associates (a) HEELERANRS
Nature of transaction 2011 2010
REMHE —B2——-fF —T-TF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B & TERT FET
Rental expenses ME 2,229 —
Loan interest income BHF BMA 7,418 82
Corporate guarantee fee NAERER 36 4,378 52
Disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment " 1,150 —
(b) Compensation of key management personnel b) FEEHEABZHME

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key FRN HTEEREMTZEERE
management during the year is as follows: KEZHMEMT :
2011 2010
—B——-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Salaries, allowances and e 2ER
benefits in kind EYNa 2,860 1,680
Contributions to defined TR KRG 2
retirement scheme T 42 37
2,902 [,717
The remuneration of executive directors and key management is BWIESRFIEERE MEmE
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee having regard to the MEEEREZEARRRTIZBE
performance of individuals and market trends. fEH AT -

Further details of executive director's emoluments are included in note 9

to the consolidated financial statements.

BTEEMEFHERR
RMFEI o

4= A

T

B R
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise of
interest-bearing borrowings and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various kinds of financial instruments such as loans
receivable, other receivables and payables, available-for-sale financial assets, and
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which arise

directly from its business activities.

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line

SEMBRRMEE

33. MBERERREREE

AEEZTESMIA (FTETARIN
BREFESER RekReFE - %F
ERIACZIZRABENIRAREZEH
EERE -AEEAREZRIA W
ERBERBELCERER  EME
WHRERENRE A HEMBEE
UEREBERAFEAABRSEZHMBEERA

f&e

ERMIAMEARRCEARNTIE

items below: B:
The Group AEH
Financial
assets at Available-
fair value for-sale
Loans and  through profit financial
receivables or loss assets Total
BRFEFA
EXR BE e
L e e BBEE RBEE st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TER TR TER TER
At 31 December 2011 R-B--%
tT=-BA=+—H
Financial Assets HBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At HERKEE = = 104,717 104,717
Financial assets at fair value BAYEFABR
through profit or loss AR = 711,170 = 711,170
Loans receivable EKER 83,006 = = 83,006
Other receivables H MR 15,794 — — 15,794
Cash and cash equivalents HekHAeEE 335,623 = = 335,623
Total 5t 434,423 711,170 104,717 1,250,310
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 33. BIBEMERBEEREEK (&)
(Contd)

The Group (Contd) XEB (&)
Other
financial
liabilities
HitpBas
HK$’000
TER
At 31 December 201 | R-—E——%+=-H=+—H
Financial Liabilities MBEE
Other payables H fth & 5B 3,016
Interest-bearing borrowings STEER 33,311
Total R 36,327
Financial
assets at Available-
fair value for-sale
Loans and  through profit financial
receivables or loss assets Total
BRTETA
Enk BaZ Al i &
IR MBEE MBEE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+-A=+—H
Financial Assets HKEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHREENEEE — — 26,020 26,020
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFAER
through profit or loss LHBEE — 677,842 — 677,842
Loans receivable FEYE 202,280 — — 202,280
Other receivables Hfth Y 5RIA 160,648 — — 160,648
Cash and cash equivalents BekAeEE 317478 — — 317478

Total @t 680,406 677,842 26,020 1,384,268
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

The Group (Contd)

e MR

33. MBEBEERRREE (&)

r&58 (&)

Other
financial
liabilities

HMBBaE
HK$'000
FHETT
At 3| December 2010 R-_E—ZF+-_A=+—H
Financial Liabilities /b 3=Ri
Other payables H fth & 5B 3,467

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate
risk, equity price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not have any
written risk management policies and guidelines except for loans receivable.
However, the board of directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its
risk management and limit the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

AEESRIAMEEZTERBR AT

Rk - RAERERR - E8RE R
@ﬁéﬂ“°%@f% Y AR E SN -
AEETEEMAXEBERBER
IBal - A - EXe—RyEERRBRER
RERTRE - WHAREREAECR
BREHEHEKT EZERIARAE
ERELMEERR 2 ABEE SRR
Bl o
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Contd)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and loans receivable. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate

risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2010: 100 basis points) higher or lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s net loss would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$3,397,000 and HK$74,000 respectively (2010: HK$4,693,000 and
HK$ 1,550,000 respectively).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 100 basis points (2010: 100 basis points) increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next annual end of the reporting

period. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2010.

2011 5% )EZ%UIB%‘?HEEEE'RT

RS ERR M T

“F——F+t-R=t—HLFE

33. MBERERERERECK (@)

ik 9N
AEERAMRESHMAR T HRRE
EEPE KRG FEMRNETFR -
AEBYEEBITESB T AR
R o

RERBLEER - HFE LARLTRE100
BEZ (—T—ZF : 1008E2) Mt
Pﬁﬁ“ai‘ﬁﬁ\“ AEBEZFEER
2 Al R 3K 38 00 49 3,397,000 T &
740008 T (ZF—FF : 54
4,693,000/ 7 % 1,550,000/ 7T) °

TRERESINT 2 EEIRENELZE
REFHBLEERRLE  VEBZEHE
FHM%EITEZ}%%%%ME:E%{Z%U

BB - SR 100EES (ZF—
3@6 1001 E %) B E B BT FIRR
EE T FEESRBLEAHRZAE
WEEs —T—FFZAMNHERERA
HAEHAT o
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(Cont'd)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading of listed
securities and unlisted convertible bonds classified as investments held for
trading and investments designated as at fair value upon initial recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. The sensitivity analysis has been

determined based on the exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted market prices of the trading
securities had been 5% (2010: 5
were held constant, the Group’s net loss would decrease or increase by
approximately HK$ 106,676,000 (2010: HK$101,676,000) as a result of changes

in fair value of investments.

%) higher or lower while all other variables

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the reasonably
possible changes in the stock market index or other relevant risk variables had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also assumed that
the fair values of the Group’s investments would change in accordance with
the historical correlation with the relevant stock market index or the relevant
risk variables, that none of the Group's securities investments would be
considered impaired as a result of a reasonably possible decrease in the
relevant stock market index or other relevant risk variables, and that all other
variables remain constant. The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market index
or the relevant risk variables over the period until the next annual end of the

reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

BRAERER

AEBZBRABRERILIKREESZE M
BRRADBRRIEEEREZLHE
HREEMABERE S R B R ERE
ERBEAVEIRIRERE - BUEE
DMDERFAE RAERERE

JE °

I

RERBLEER  MEEEH2MHR
BLEAKTREI5% (ZF—FF : 15%)
MEMMEZERFIE  AREZF
EBRERREZATEZEMA DKL
AN #7106,676,0008 7T (= F—F4F :

101,676,000 7T) °

BREINTCEEIREBMEHIE
tiEERREE A EAREIR 2R
HEEHERRE  YEKXEDHER
RZBFEZRAERAER - RERR
AEEREBBECAVEHEREENAH
ﬁh%&ﬁ@ MEEZBEBL

Bl IBRRAKBZEFRESS
Iﬁ%hmh%iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂé
AEAETHMERERE - FMRRM
BEMBEEERKIE - MIIRZE2EE
EEEFEEERT R ARERE
ENEE T*i? HAEERHE
AEREEY —T-TF2HMNR
HEREEETT -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Contd)

Credit risk
The Group
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to loans receivable and an
amount due from an associate. The carrying amounts of these balances
substantially represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk at the

end of the reporting period.

Management has money lending policies in place and the exposure to the
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group provides financial
services only with recognised, and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to borrow money are subject to credit

verification procedures.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each borrower. The default risk of the industry and country in
which borrowers operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration of
credit risk as 51% (2010: 35%) of the total loans receivable were due from the

Group's five largest borrowers.

The Group has limited credit risk with its money deposited in financial
institutions and brokers, which are leading and reputable and are assessed as
having low credit risk. The Group has not suffered any significant losses arising
from the non-performance by these parties in the past and management does

not expect this position to change in the future.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the consolidated financial
statements, which is net of impairment losses, represented the Group’s
exposure to credit risk without taken into account the value of any collateral

obtained.

Year ended 3| December 2011 £ 2
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AEERE -

EREECEREERR  LTHERER
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RiE AEEAREETEEEBZME
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MEBERERERARARTTZE2EER
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 33. iIBEREEEEREEK (&)

118

(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Contd)

The Company

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from
subsidiaries and an associate. As at 3| December 201 |, the Company had a
concentration of risk as 49% (2010: 60%) and 99% (2010: 100%) of the total
amounts are due from the Company's largest subsidiary and five largest

subsidiaries respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The Group closely monitors
its exposure to liquidity risk by reviewing the cash position report on a daily

basis and analysing the efficiency of fund management.

The Group has committed a loan facility of HK$78,000,000 (2010
HK$78,000,000) from a financial institution to meet liquidity needs. At the end
of the reporting period, the unutilised borrowing facilities amounted to

HK$44,689,000 (2010: HK$78,000,000).

EERR ()

A AE
AARMEERREERAEKHEL
ARMEARIRE - RZF——F+=
H—+*H'$’EEWHWKW%/

ARERKEA E@ﬁzﬂkx
HEH %J;%49% —FF 60%) R
9% (ZE—FF : 700%)°
RBESER

AEEZERREBNARTER &
BeREMHEBEEH  RARFETE - &
SESGRERReMABELHTESR
ERYE  FYERRBERRRE

ARBEERA#ERA -SREBENERR
& 78,000,0008 x (ZF —F F
78,000,000 ) AER REBIE ©F K o
RERBLER  KPABEAR
44,689,0008 © (= F — T F .
78,000,0008 L) °
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Contd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of the

reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments are summarised

2011 3 BAIEBRIZERBERA R

SEMBRRMEE

Year ended 3| December 201 | HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE

RBESEE (&)

33. MBERERERERECK (@)

RERBEER  AEBVBABRE
WARFANFEE 2 B BB R

below: %
The Group rEH
Total
contractual Total
Less than 3-12 undiscounted carrying
On demand 3 months months  cash flow value
BRRTR
REX PR3EAIZN2M@EA RAEeRLE AKREE
HK$’000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TERT TER TER TER
At 31 December 20 | R-Z-—-f+-A=+—-H
Other payables H A T 5RIE 1,436 896 684 3,016 3,016
Interest-bearing borrowings  &F B f& 3K = 33,399 = 33,399 33,311
Financial guarantee contracts AR A 4] 342,097 — — 342,097 342,097
343,533 34,295 684 378,512 378,424
At 31 December 2010 RZTE-—ZTF+HA=1—H
Other payables HoAh fE T B 307 2,261 899 3,467 3,467
Financial guarantee contracts BT {ERE K] 359,797 — — 359,797 359,797
360,104 2,261 899 363,264 363,264
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 33. iIBEREEEEREEK (&)

(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk(Contd) RBELREKE (8)
The Company ¥ AL
Total
contractual Total
Less than 3-12 undiscounted carrying
On demand 3 months months cash flow value
YRR )
REX PR3EA3Z12f8F RensE HAEEE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TER TER
At 31 December 201 | R-ZE——F+=-A=+-—H
Other payables HAh T IE 1,286 — — 1,286 1,286
Financial guarantee contracts BIFHER & 4] 342,097 = — 342,097 342,097
343,383 — — 343383 343383
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-ZF+-A=1—H
Other payables o & 30IA 2,145 — — 2,145 2,145
Financial guarantee contracts B 5 #E1RA 47 359,797 — — 359,797 359,797
361,942 _ — 361992 361942

The amounts include above for financial guarantee contracts are the maximum
amounts of the corporate guarantees shown in the earliest periods in which
the guarantees could be called. Based on the past history and expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the directors do not consider it probable that
a claim will be made against the Group and the Company under these

guarantees.

EXHABERABERSNORERT
EFERANREHBARRAERR
AeH - REBELBRENZRHLEE
BB EZRR/EAKERARAAN
RABERAEERERE
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Contd)

Fair value
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from

their fair values as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Fair value disclosures

The following presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at
fair value at 31 December 2011 across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair
value of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The

levels are defined as follows:

*  Level | (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices

(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments;

*  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market

data;

*  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in

which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

Year ended 3| December 2011 £ 2
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 33. iIBEREEEEREEK (&)
(Cont'd)

Financial assets measured at fair value BOTEFENTMKEE
The Group N
Total Level | Level 2 Level 3
#Et BFIR B2R E3M
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
e L L
At 3| December 201 | R=Z——F
+=ZHA=+—H
Financial assets at fair value through & A FEF Az
profit or loss (note 19) EE (ME19) 711,170 638,604 72,566 —
Available-for-sale financial AJ it 1 65 B A
assets (note 17) &E (K 17) 64,505 64,505 — —
775,675 703,109 72,566 —
At 31 December 2010 RZZ—ZF
+=-—RA=
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss M%EE 677,842 626,165 51,677 —
During the year ended 3| December 2011 and 2010, there were no transfers BE_T——FR-T-TF+-R=
between Level | and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into +—HLEFE %1%&&%’2%&2\$ﬁﬁ
and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. EZHTEER  NEEAZIRATE

AEHBFEIRATEFEEL
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34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

35.

The objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern and to provide returns for shareholders.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments, including
payment of dividends to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. The capital structure of the Group
consists of net debts, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
shareholders (comprising issued share capital and reserves). No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 3|
December 201 | and 2010.

34.

BXEE

AEEEAEREZARRREER LR
BRERENRARRRHEDR - AEE
ERLRAREEARE  BREARRIK
B ARREERALBTHRKLE
BENRLER - AREENEARER
REBKEE ReRRASFEARERR
FEAG B (8 T§E1§§TTHXZKZQFﬁﬁ§> ° B
ER—HR-FT-FTFT-A=T
*Hﬁiﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁ%*ﬂﬁ&k%ﬁ
BEY -

COMMITMENTS 35. #&iE
Capital expenditure commitments ERERAR
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following capital RERPLEER REBFUTEREK
commitments: #
2011 2010
—E-—fF —T-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B Ex TERT FTET
Contracted but not provided, BRIAVERRNERS B 7%
net of deposit paid in the consolidated WRETREHR
financial statements: BEHkRENEZESE
Capital injection in investee companies KR E R AEE 29 56,401 —
Subscription of share of investee company  FREEMRIZE A AR 37(a) 48,080 —
Acquisition of an investment property BE-BEREME 37(b) 7,470 =
Others Htb 8l 124

112,032 124
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35. COMMITMENTS (Contd)

Commitments under operating leases

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office

equipment and premises, which are payable as follows:

FE TR MR

s,

& (®)

KeBORE

RERBLEER  FEERBBAHLE
RERBFZAATREEEROMNEN
ARKEESLBMT :

2011 2010
o i

HK$000 HK$'000

TR FHET

Within one year —5R 1,230 1,894
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFLF (BREEMF) 155 902
1,385 2,796

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company had provided
corporate guarantees for banking facilities amounting to HK$342,097,000
(2010: HK$359,797,000) granted to its associates, which were utilised to the
extent of HK$278,361,000 (2010: HK$316,059,000). The directors assessed
the fair value of overall exposure of the corporate guarantees granted by the
Company and considered that it is immaterial to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the Company. In respect of the provision of
corporate guarantees to the associates, the Group earned corporate
guarantee fee of HK$4,378,000 (2010: HK$52,000) during the year.

36.

REFBEER  AEERADQAEH]
HE e 1A ER 2 R17155342,097,000
BIL(ZF—FF : 359,797,000 )17
HARER HPEHREEEAR
278,361,000 T (= F — T #F
316,059,000 ) - EXTHARAK
HZARIERZEEBRARNATE R
ARARBRARRZEENBREE
A o HRA A E D AR D AER -
AEERERRIRA A ERE4,378,000
BT (ZFE—FF 1 52,000%TT) °
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

In September 201 |, the Company entered into a share subscription
agreement with Freeman, pursuant to which the Company shall subscribe
for and Freeman shall issue and allot 188,548,057 Freeman'’s adjusted
shares (upon Freeman’s capital reorganisation becoming effective) to the
Company at approximately HK$0.255 each for the consideration of
HK$48,079,755 in cash (the “Freeman Subscription”). The transaction was
completed in March 2012.

In December 201 I, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party for the acquisition of an investment property in Hong Kong at cash
consideration of HK$8,300,000. A deposit of HK$830,000 had been paid
in December 201 | and the remaining balance was paid at the completion

date of acquisition in January 2012.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 22
December 2011, a resolution in respect of the further capital reduction
was approved by the shareholders. Subject to the approval by the High
Court of Hong Kong and the fulfillment of certain registration
requirements, the Company is allowed to reduce the amount standing in
the credit of the Company's share premium account to the extent of
approximately HK$ 1,322 million and applying the credit arising from such
reduction to set off against the equal amount of approximately HK$ 1,322
million of the Company’s accumulated losses for the year ended 31
December 2010.

2011 3 BAIEBRIZERBERA R
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37. EHRHEER

(a)

RZZE——FNA ARAHRE
STURNARERE  FREERE
1B E IR - A2 ZE 448,079,755
ATReRBRERA0.255F TR
B REA®ETRES
188,548,057 R E K HRERH
((RERE]) - XHERZE—Z
F=ZARTK °

RZE——F+=f ' XAFIME
2EMBRREBYE=F:IVE
E#5 % © $48,300,000% R & K
BEBRE-—HEBREWE -N=-F
—— &+ AE % fJ830,000% T
Be BERN_T-—_—F—AEE
ek B HAS AT o

ARABRER-_T——F+=ZA=
TZHRTZRRENASRB—
BRER  HEE—FERRAE
HEBREERMERKNDRIHE
ETERE  ARRAHADFR
hE B EMEREHRLD
1,322,000,0007% 7T + I # 3% &l
EECERARNEEARABES
T-ZF+_A=+—ALEFEZ
23 B BER % & B QD
1,322,000,000% T °
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Contd)

(d)

In February 2012, the Company announced that the Group will by itself
fully subscribe for 420,686,114 rights shares of Freeman (“Freeman
Rights Shares™) at the aggregate subscription price of HK$42,068,61 | if
the Freeman subscription as mentioned in (a) is completed on or before
I'l April 2012. Details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 26 January 2012 and 6 February 2012. As the
Freeman Subscription was completed in March 2012, the Group will

proceed with the subscription of Freeman Rights Shares in due course.

In March 2012, the Company entered into a note purchase agreement
with Quinella International Incorporated (the “Vendor”), pursuant to
which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and the Company has
conditionally agreed to purchase the unsecured notes with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$30 million at a consideration of HK$20,483,304
which will be satisfied by the Company by way of allotment and issue of
108,953,747 ordinary shares of the Company to the Vendor (or its
nominees) at the issue price of HK$0.188 per share upon completion,
details of which are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8

March 2012. The acquisition was completed in March 2012.

SEMBRRMEE

37. ERHAERBE (&)

(d)

(e)
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

ATRAKERBEREVREFRE 2 XEEE

five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements ERBERE BHRERERGEMBRERL
and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. RESBHNHE -
RESULTS £
Year ended 3| December
HET-A=1+-HLFE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
“E2-—-§ C"E-FBF C"EENF CTTNF CTTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET TET TR TET
(Restated)
(E5)
Turnover = <] (31,180) 55,698 94,451 (341,209) 104,928
(Loss) Profit before taxation ~ BREEAT (E518) & F (554,527) (192,694) 133,285 (786,745) (197,582)
Taxation HIE (288) (2,905) (3,940) (11,083) —
(Loss) Profit for the year FR (BE) &R (554,815) (195,599) 129,345 (797,828) (197,582)
Non-controlling interests R ER 2,517 26,314 — — —
(Loss) Profit for the year EREER
attributable to equity BEAE®L
holders of the Company Er (FR) &H (552,298) (169,285) 129,345 (797,828) (197,582)
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BERREE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-—-% C—Z-%F CZIZTTNF ZTITN\F CITITLF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T T FTAET FHET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Z31) (Z31) (Z71)
Investment properties REME — — 638,773 609,814 326,500
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - BRE R & 2,597 5343 224,805 194,96 | 35,049
Interest in associates N 567,829 583,281 183,459 — —
Available-for-sale financial assets 7] it H & B %4 & 104,717 26,020 27,061 — —
Other investments Hiig & 4,580 — 146,430 123,521 113,965
Intangible assets EVEAE — — — 131,879 134,626

Deposit for acquisition of BEREMEZ

investment properties Be 830 — — 5,304 8,656
Loans receivable BREX 3,051 4,000 13,849 15,720 —
Current assets mEEE 1,142,855 1,373,487 1,632,594 814,923 1,229,522
Current liabilities mEAE (36,643) (3,495) (307,553) (330,170) (361,853)
1,789,816 1,988,636 2,559,418 1,565,952 1,486,465
Equity holders’ funds ERBAEAER 1,792,583 1,988,636 1,928,312 1,540,513 1,486,465
Non-controlling interests IR (2,767) — 601,708 — —
Deferred tax liabilities ELEMEERE — — 29,398 25,439 —
1,789,816 1,988,636 2,559,418 1,565,952 1,486,465
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